CITY OF SAUGATUCK, MICHIGAN

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial

UAALasa
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuatlon Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date {a) (b) {b-a} Total (<) {(>-a)/e)
12/31/2008 s 1,170,730 § 1,242,158 8§ 71,428 94% $ 161,763 44%,
12/31/2009 1,206,830 1,292,495 85,665 93% 359,038 24%
1213112040 1,268,387 1,359,695 91,308 93% 380,376 24%
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CITY OF SAUGATUCK, MICHIGAN

Combining Schedule of Balance Sheet Accounts by Activity
General Fund

June 30, 2011
Total
General Business General
Fund Licenses Parks Fund
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,158,125 § 1,265 % 228292 % 1,380,682
Investments 117,460 - - 117,460
Receivables 26,443 - - 26,443
Total assels 3 1,205,028 § 1,265 3 228292 % 1,524,585
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable S 38,221 § 1265 % 2850 §% 42,376
Accrued liabilities 25,323 - - 25,323
Total liabilities 63,544 1,265 2,890 67,699
Fund balances
Committed 325,000 - - 325,000
Unassigned 906,484 - 225,402 1,131,886
Total fund balances 1,231,484 - 225,402 1,456,886
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 1,295028 § 1,265 § 228292 § 1,524,585
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CITY OF SAUGATUCK, MICHIGAN

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances by Activity
General Fund

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovenmmental revenue
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Interest and rentals
Other revenue

Total revenues

Expenditures
Cuwrrent:
General governntent
Legislative
Public safety
Public works
Recreation and culture
Debt service:
Principal
Interest
Capital outlay

Total expenditures
Revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing uses
Transfers out

Net changes in fund balances
Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Total
General Business General
Fund Licenses Parks Fund
3 1,523,948 % - - 1,523,948
66,715 - - 66,715
3,579,725 - - 3,579,725
298,044 - - 298,044
30,925 - - 30,925
61,775 31 31,919 65,725
20,098 - - 20,098
5,581,230 31 3,919 5,585,180
386,386 - - 386,386
81,960 - - 81,960
615,592 - - 615,592
276,555 16,914 - 293,469
362,665 - 7,430 370,095
46,000 - - 46,000
3,065 - - 3,065
3,537,512 - - 3,537,512
5,309,735 16,914 7,430 5,334,079
271,495 (16,883) {3,511) 251,101
(160,843} - - {160,843}
110,652 (16,883} (3,511) 90,258
1,:20,832 16,883 228,913 1,366,628
$ 1,231,484 § - 225,402 1,456,886

43



CITY OF SAUGATUCK, MICHIGAN

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables

Total assets

Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Total liabilities

Fund balances
Restricted

Total liabilities and fund balances

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2011
Special Revenue Debt Service Capital Project
Sewer
Major Streets Debt Streetscape Total

$ 135,596 49,173 § - 184,769
8,509 26 - 8,535
$ 144,105 49,199  § - 193,304
3 615 - 8 - 615
711 - - 711
1,326 - - 1,320
142,779 49,199 - 191,978
$ 144,105 49,199 § - 193,304
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CITY OF SAUGATUCK, MICHIGAN
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Special Revenue Debt Service Capital Project
Sewer
Major Streets Debt Streetscape Total
Revenues
Taxes $ - 8 264,594 3 - 264,594
Intergovernmental revenue 111,340 - - 111,340
Interest and rentals 391 379 6,190 6,960
Total revenues 111,731 204,973 6,190 382,894
Expenditures
Current:
Public works 178,317 1,100 - 179,417
Debt service:
Principal - 100,000 - 100,000
Interest - 161,995 - 161,995
Caplial outlay - - 617,160 617,160
Total expenditures 178,317 263,095 617,160 1,058,572
Revenues over {under} expenditures (66,586} 1,878 (610,970} (675,678)
Other financing sources
Transfers in 145,617 - - 145,617
Net change in fund balances 76,031 1,878 (610,970) {530,061)
Fund balances, beginning of year 63,748 47,321 610,970 722,039
Fund balances, end of year $ 142,779 % 49,199 § - 191,978
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@ .; Re h m a n n Rehmann Rohson
2330 East Paris Ave., SE
Grand Rapids, M 49546
Ph: 616.975.4100
Fx: 616.975.4400
wwsv.relimani,com

September 19, 2011

Honorable Mayor and Members of
the City Council
City of Saugatuck, Michigan

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Suugatuck (the “City”) for the year ended
June 30, 2011, and have issued our report thercon dated September 19, 2011, Professional
standards require that we provide you with the following information related to our audit,

Our Responsibility Under Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United States of
America

As stated in our engagement letter dated August 1, 2011, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared by
management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the
financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement, As part of our audit, we
considered the internal control of the City. Such considerations were solely for the purpose of
determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal
control, We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in
our professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting
process. However, we are not required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters,

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to
you in our engagement fetter and in our meeting about planning matters on July 12, 201 1.

CPAs Business Consultants Financial Advisors (NTERSATTIN AL
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Significant Results of the Audit

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies
used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. Other than the adoption of
GASB Statement No. 54, which is described in Note 9 to the financial statements, no other
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during
the year. We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a
lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions that have been
recognized in the financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred,

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates

affecting the financial statements were:

=  Management’s estimate of the useful lives of depreciable capital assets is based on
the length of time it is believed that those assets will provide some economic benefit

in the future,

» Management’s estimate of the accrued compensated absences is based on current
hourly rates and policies regarding payment of sick and vacation banks.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in determining
that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

The financial statements may be affected by unusual transactions, including nonrecurring
transactions. The following significant unusual accounting transactions occurred during the year:

» During 2011, the City was awarded a $3.5 million grant from the State of Michigan to
purchase land. This was recorded in general fund intergovernmental revenue and
capitalized on the government-wide statements, The City was also the recipient of a
$2.1 million donation from private parties to purchase land. This was recorded as a
capital contribution in the recreation and culture function on the government-wide

financial statements.
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Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and to communicate them to the appropriate
level of management. The attached schedule summarizes uncorrected misstatements of the
financial statements. Management has determined that their effects are immaterial, both
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. In addition, as
noted in Finding 2011-1 in Attachment A, we proposed various audit adjustments, all of which
were recorded by management, and which had a material effect on the City’s financial reporting

process.
Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this leiter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction,
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to
report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the attached
management representation letter dated September 19, 2011.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the entity’s financial statements or
a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with

other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s
auditors, However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional
retationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.



Page 4
This information is intended solely for the use of the governing body and management of the
City of Saugatuck and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these

specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Koloses b



City of Saugatuck
Attachment A - Consideration of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City of Saugatuck (the
“City”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, we considered the City’s internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the

effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal conirol was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencics or material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all
such deficiencies have been identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and

corrected on a timely basis.

Material Weaknesses

We consider the following deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting to be material
weaknesses:

Finding 2011-1 - Preparation of Financial Statements in Accordance with GAAP/
Material Audit Adjustments
Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Criteria. All Michigan governments are required to prepare financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). This is a responsibility of the government’s
management. The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires internal
controls over both (1) recording, processing, and summarizing accounting data (i.e., maintaining
internal books and records), and (2) reporting government-wide and fund financial statements,
including the related footnotes (i.e., external financial reporting.)

Condition. As is the case with many smaller and medium-sized entitics, the government has
historically relied on its independent external auditors to assist in the preparation of the
government-wide financial statements and footnotes as part of its external financial reporting
process.

Al-



City of Saugatuck
Attachment A - Consideration of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

In addition, material audit adjustments were necessary to record:

e Transfers received from the General Fund in to the Local Streets Fund
s Additional payable amounts in the Local Streets Fund

Accordingly, the government’s ability fo prepare general purpose external financial statements in
accordance with GAAP is based, in part, on its reliance on its external auditors, who cannot by
definition be considered a part of the government’s infernal controls.

Cause. This condition was caused by the government’s decision that it is more cost effective to
outsource the preparation of its annual financial statements to the auditors than to incur the time and
expense of obtaining the necessary training and expertise required for the government to perform
this task internally.

Effect. As a result of this condition, the government’s accounting records were initially misstated
by an amount material to the financial statements of the General and Local Streets Funds. Further,
the government lacks complete internal controls over the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with GAAP, and instead relies, in part, on its external auditors for assistance with this

task.

Recommendation. The material audit adjustment was related to transfer entries incorrectly posted
in the cutrent year and one invoice that was not property accrued to the current year. The related
correcting entries have been reviewed and approved by management, and no further corrective
action is required at this time.

View of Responsible Officials. The government has evaluated the benefit of establishing internal
controls over the preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP, and determined that
it is in the best interests of the government to outsource this task to its external auditors, and to
carefuily review the proposed journal entries, draft financial statements and notes prior to approving
them and accepting responsibility for their content and presentation.

Finding 2011-2 — Segregation of Incompatible Duties
Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Criteria. Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls in
order to safeguard the assets of the City. A key element of internal control is the segregation of
incompatible duties within the accounting function,

Condition. The City has several transaction cycles that are performed by the same individual or are
not subject to independent review and approval, including: (1) responsibilities for payroll
accounting are not separated from the general ledger function, (2) after payroll is processed, there is
no comparison of approved timesheets to the payroll register for accuracy, (3) an authorized signer
on the bank account is also responsible for printing checks and petforming the monthly bank review
and reconciliation, (4) cash deposit are made by an individual who is also responsible for posting
receipts and preparing deposit slips, (5) bank accounts are not reconciled by individuals



City of Saugatuck
Attachment A - Consideration of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

For the Year Ended June 36, 2011

independent of cash receipts and disbursements functions, or consistently reviewed by an
independent employee, (6) maintenance of the receivable subsidiary ledger is not independent of
general ledger maintenance, and (7) there is no overall review of deposits to the subsidiary detail
and to the amount posted to the general ledger by an independent employee.

Cause. This condition is the result of staffing constraints typical of smaller governmental units.

Effect. As a result of this condition, the City is exposed to an increased risk that misstatements
(whether caused by error or fraud) may not be prevented or detected by management on a timely

basis.

Recommendation, There are, of course, no casy answers to the challenge of balancing the costs
and benefits of internal controls and the segregation of incompatible duties. Recognizing this fact,
we encourage the City to mitigate this risk by requiring as much independent review, reconciliation,
and approval of accounting functions by qualified members of management as possible.

View of Responsible Officials, Management recognizes that this limitation is a natural outgrowth
of the small number of fuli-time staff, and applies its judgment in determining how best to allocate
the City’s resources to provide an appropriate balance between sound internal controls and fiscal

prudence.
Other Matters

Council Approval of Disbursements

The City’s disbursement policy allows certain routine invoices to be paid prior to Council approval
in order to expedite payment. However, the policy states that such disbursements should then be
submitted to and approved by the Council at a subsequent meeting. As part of our audit, we
compared the disbursements made during the month of April 2011 to the list of invoices submitted
to and approved by the Council. Based on our review, it appears that certain recurring payments
(such as utility bills) are not routinely presented to the Council for review and approval, even after
the fact. Furthermore, there is not currently a process to ensure that non-routine disbursements (such
as those paid by ACHAvire, rather than by check) are presented to the Council. In order to more
fully comply with State law and the City's own policies, we recommend thai the Council receive
copies of all completed check registers, along with a separate log of any ACH/wire payments made
since the last Council meeting.

-A3-



City of Saugatuck
Attachment B - Schedule of Adjustments Passed {SOAP)
For the June 30, 201 F Audit

In accordance with the provisions of SAS 107, Audit Risk and Materiality , we have prepared the following schedule of proposed audit
adjustments, which we believe are immaterial both individually and in the aggregate. Also in accordance with SAS 107, we are
providing this schedule to both management and the audit commiltee to receive their assurance that they agree that the amounts listed
below are not material to the financial statements, either individually or in the aggregate, and do not need to be recorded.

Effect of Passed Adpustment - Over{Under)Statement
Beginning Expenses/
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Expenditurgs

General Fund
Prior year effect of unrecorded

accrued interest on certificate
of deposit - 2009, net of 2010

amount. {Corrected in 2011.) 3 S (3309) 3309 $

Major Streets Fund
Prior year effect of
underrecorded revenue related
to the road maintenance

millase. {Corrected in 2011 3 3 - $ - 3 (2,715) $ 2,715 % -

Governmental Activities
Sum of itemis above $ - $ - § {6,024) § 6,024 § -

-B] -
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September 19, 201}

Rehmann Robson
2330 East Paris Ave
Grand Rapids, 49546

We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the Cigy of
Saugatuck as of June 30, 2011 and for the year then ended for the purpose of expressing opinions as to
whether the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of
the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund of the City of Saugatuck
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We confirm that we are
responsible for the fair presentation of the previously mentioned financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of America. We are also responsible for
adopting sound accounting policies, establishing and maintaining effective intermal control, and

preventing and detecting fraund,

We confinmn, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of September 19, 2011, the following
representations made to you during your audit.

1. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and include all properly classified
funds and other financial information of the primary government and all component units
required by generally accepted accounting principles to be included in the financial reporting

entity.
2, We have made available to you all—
a Financial records and related data.
b, Minutes of the meetings of City Council or summaries of actions of recent meetings for
which minutes have not yet been prepared.
3. There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with,

or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

4, There are no material transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records
underlying the financial statements.

5. We are in agreement with the adjusting journal entries you have proposed, and they have been

posted,

102 Butler Street * P.O. Box 86 ® Saugatuck, Mt 49453
Phone: 269-857-2603 * Website: www.saugatuckeity.com
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We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of programs and controls
to prevent and detect fraud.

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving:

a. Management,
b. Employees who have significant roles in internal contral, or
c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity received
in communications from employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others.

We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

We have identified to you any previous financial audits, attestation engagements, performance
audits, or other studies related to the objectives of the audit being undertaken and the corrective
actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations,

We have provided our views on reported findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as
our planned corrective actions, for the repoit,

The City has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification
of assets, liabilities, or equity.

The following, if any, have been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements:

a, Related party transactions, including revenues, expendituresfexpenses, loans, transfers,
leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related

paities.

For the purposes of this letter, related parties mean members of the governing body;
board members; administrative officials; immediate families of administrative officials,
board members, and members of the governing body; and any companies affiliated with
or owned by such individuals.

b. Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the City is contingently liable,

c. All accounting estimates that could be material to the financial statements, including the
key factors and significant assumptions underlying those estimates and measurements.
We belicve the estimates and measurements are reasonable in the circumstances,
consistently applied, and adequately disclosed.

102 Butler Street * P.O. Box 86 ¢ Saugatuck, Ml 49453
Phone: 269-857-2603 * Website: www.saugatuckcity.com



14,

15,

17.

18.

19,

20,

¥ EST. 1808

We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and
grant agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts; and we have
identified and disclosed to you all laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements that we believe have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts, or other financial data significant to the audit objectives, including legal and
contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.

There are no—

a. Violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations (including
those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of contracts
and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose effects
should be considered for disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for recording
a Joss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance.

b. We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments or
unasserted claims or assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the
financial statements in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Statement No. 5, and we have not consulted a lawyer concerning litigation, claims, or

assessments.

c. Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed
by FASB Statement No. 5.

d. Reservations or designation of fund equity that were not properly authorized and
approved.

As part of your audit, you prepared the draft financial statements and related notes. We have
designated a competent management-fevel individual to oversee your services and have made all
management decisions and performed all management functions, We have reviewed, approved,
and accepted responsibility for those financial statements and related notes,

The City has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such
assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral,

The City has complied with all aspecls of contractual agreements that would have a material
effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance,

‘The financial statements include all component units as well as joint ventures with an equity
interest, and properly disclose all other joint ventures and other related organizations.

The financial statements properly classify all funds and aclivities.

102 Butler Street © P.O, Box 86 * Saugatuck, Ml 49453
Phone: 269-857-2603 * Website: www,saugatuckeity.com
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All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Statement Nos. 34 and 37 for presentation
as major are identified and presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major are
particularly important to financial statement users.

Net asset components (invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted)
and fund balance reserves and designations are properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

Provisions for uncoliectibe receivables have been properly identified and recorded,

Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the
statement of activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.

Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues,
general revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or contributions to permanent
fund principal.

Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and
reported.

Deposits and investment securities are properly classified as to risk, and investments are properly
valued,

Capital assets, including infrastructure assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and, if
applicable, depreciated.

Required supplementary information (RSI) is measured and presented within prescribed
guidelines,

No events, including instances of noncompliance, have occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date and
through the date of this letter that would requirc adjustment to or disclosure in the aforementioned

financial statements.

Kirk Hamer, Clt)jg\é/

Peter Stamslawskl City Treasurer

102 Butler Street » P,O. Box 86 ° Saugatuck, Ml 49453
Phone: 269-857-2603 * Website: www.savgatuckeity.com
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: e h m a n n Rehmann Robson
2330 East Paris Ave,, SE
Grand Rapids, MI 49546

Ph: 616.975.4100
Fx: 616.975.4400

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS?! REPORT www.rehmann.com

October 13, 2011

Honorable Mayor and Members of
the City Council
City of the Village of Douglas, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely presented
component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of the Villuge of
Douglas, Michigan, (the “City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the
City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our

audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Compiroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinions,

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present faitly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the discretely presented compenent unit, each major fund and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2011 and the respective changes in financial
position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the general fund
and each major special revenue fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America,

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 2-7 and the historical supplementary information for the
Employees’ Retirement Systems are not required parts of the basic financial statements but are supplementary
information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express
no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The combining financial statements are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the City’s basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly
presented, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

June 30, 2011

As management of the City of the Village of Douglas, we offer readers of the City of the Village of Douglas’s
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the year
ended June 303, 2011, Please read it in conjunction with the City’s financial statements,

Financial Highlights

As discussed in further detail in this discussion and analysis, the following represents the most significant
financial highlights for the year ended June 30, 2011:

s Additional emphasis placed on investing in certificate of deposits covered by FDIC insurance; however
interest income decreased from the previous years as a result of the stock market falling.

¢ The Major Street and Local Street Funds both receive ACT 51 funding from the State of Michigan.
However, the ACT 51 funding only covers about 40% and 28% of the operating expenditures for the
Major Street and Local Street Funds respectively. In order for these funds to maintain a positive fund
balance they are both significantly supported with monies from the General Fund.

e Property tax revenues increased approximately $8,000 from the prior year and General Fund
expenditures decreased approximately $110,000.

¢ Total governmental fund balances increased by $832,927 including $569,833 in the General Fund,

Using this Aunual Report

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s financial statements, The
City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2)
fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and labilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows, Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some itens that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., accrued interest on
long-term debt).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (govermmental activities) from other functions that are
intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type
activities). The governmental activities of the City include general government, public safety, public works,
community and economic development, and recreation and culture.



The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary
government), but also legally separate component units for which the City is financially accountable. The
City’s camponent unit is the Downtown Development Authority, Financial information for the component
unit is reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 7-9 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonsirate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds,

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.
Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-termn financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it
is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental
activities.

The City reports 7 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental
fund balance sheet and in the governmentat fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balances for the General and Major Streets Funds, each of which are considered to be major funds. Data from
the other 5 governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation, Individual fund data for
each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this

report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general and special revenue funds. Budgetary
comparison statements or schedules have been provided herein for all major funds to demonstrate compliance
with those budgets.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 10-16 of this report.

Proprietary fund, Tnternal service funds are an accounting device used fo accumulate and allocate costs
internally among the City’s various functions. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental
rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements,

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 17-19 of this repost.

Fiduciary fund. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to suppoit the City’s own programs. The accounting used for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary funds financial statement can be found on page 20 of this report.



Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 21-35 of this report, The combining statements referred to earlier
in connection with nommajor governmental funds are presented immediately following the notes. Combining
and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 37-40 of this report.

The City as a Whole

The following table shows, in a condensed format, the net assets as of June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Governmental Activities
2011 2010
Assets
Current & other assets $ 3,657,821 $ 2,963,298
Capital assets 5,567,057 5,776,267
Total assets 9,224,878 8,739,565
Liahilities
Current liabilities 88,437 318,417
Long-term liabilities 981,484 400,308
Total liabilities 1,069,921 718,725
Net Assets
Invested in capital assefs net
of related debt 4,867,939 5,360,358
Restricted 754,300 497,889
Unrestricted 2,532,718 2,162,593
$ 8,154,957 $ 8,020,840

The City’s total net assets were $8,154,957 at June 30, 2011, representing an increase of 3134,117 from the
prior year. Unrestricted net assets (the part of net assets that can be used to finance day-fo-day operations)
were $2,532,718 at the end of the fiscal year, representing an increase of $370,125 from the prior year,

The following table shows the changes in net assefs during the prior year and current year, respectively.

Governmental Activities

2011 2010
Revenue
Program revenue
Charges for services b 626,107 3 632,313
Operating grants & contributions 152,139 159,069
Capital grants & contributions 122,586 128,805
General revenue
Property taxes 1,823,754 1,815,691
State shared revenue 83,116 82,294
Investment earnings 15,140 27,078
Other revenues 31,426 36,772
Total revenue 2,854,268 2,882,022




Governmental Activities

2011 2010

Program Expenses
General government 3 749,854 $ 606,299
Public safety 843,915 085,780
Public works 810,775 777,822
Community & economic development 164,215 162,451
Recreation & culture 124,156 117,786
Interest on long-term debt 27,236 17,975
Total expenses 2,720,151 2,668,113
Change in net assets 134,117 213,969
Net assets, beginning of year 8,020,840 7,806,931
Net assets, end of year $ 8,154,957 $ 8,020,840

Governmental Activities

The City’s governmental revenues totaled $2,854,268, which represents a decrease of $27,754 from the prior
year, with the greatest revenue source being property taxes. Properly taxes make up approximately 64 percent
of total governmental revenue. Over the past few years, state shared revenue has declined as well as
investment earnings. The significant decline in investment earnings is the result of drastic decreases in
certificate of deposit rates,

The City incurred governmental expenses of $2,720,151, which represents an increase of $52,038 from the
prior year. The largest area of governmenta! expense is the public safety function which showed a decrease in
expenses. The public safety function provides services to both the City of the Village of Douglas and the City
of Saugatuck. The second highest area of governmental expense is the public works function which maintains
roads and parks including snow removal.

The net assets of the governmental activities increased by $134,177.

The City’s Funds - Fund Level Financial Statements

The General Fund pays for most of the City’s governmental services. The most significant services provided
by the General Fund during the fiscal year were public safety and general government. General government
includes City Hall and grounds and other City services provided. Public safety includes the police department
for both the City of the Village of Douglas and the City of Saugatuck., The General Fund incurred
expenditures for public safety and general government of $827,039 and $481,546 respectively, for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2011,

The Major Street Fund generates revenue from state revenue received from ACT 51. However, the money
received from the state to plow the roads in the winter and to maintain the roads only covers about 1/3 of the
cities expenditures in this fund, The significant remaining portions of expenditures are covered by transfers
from the General Fund every year.



General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City underestimated budgeted revenue by $160,667 and expended $409,166 less than budgeted
expendifures for the General Fund for fiscal year ending June 30, 2011. The General Fund’s expenditures for
general government, public works, and public safety were under budget by $137,508, $77,268 and $92,064
respectively. The City’s General Fund, after budget amendments, was budgeted for no change in fund balance
and fund balance actually increased by $569,833. The General Fund had budgeted monies for some projects that
were not completed in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011 creating the large budget variances.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

At the end of the fiscal year, the City had $5,567,057 invested in a broad range of capital assets, including
buildings, land, equipment, and infrastructure. The city incurred depreciation expense of $432,769 for the
current fiscal year. Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 on pages 29-30
of this report.

During the current year the City paid $41,791 in principal on installment purchase debt. The City has
$981,484 of long-term debt outstanding as of June 30, 2011, including $78,428 of accumulated compensated
absences, Of the $981,484 of outstanding long-term debt, $353,709 is expected to be paid within the next
fiscal year. The City issued new capital improvement bonds during the fiscal year of $325,000. Additional
information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 6 on page 31 of this report,

Current Economic Factors

The State of Michigan is experiencing significant budget problems, and as they look for solutions, revenue
sharing continues to be cut for municipalities. The ACT 51 revenue that the City receives from the state for
Major and Local Street Funds is insufficient to cover the required costs just to maintain the roads. This
requires money from the General Fund to be transferred to the Major and Local Street Funds annually just to
cover the operating costs of maintaining the streets in the city.

Contacting the City’s Management

This financial report is intended to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors with a general
overview of the City’s finances and demonstrate the City’s accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need additional information, we welcome you to contact the City Clerk or
Treasurer at the City Hall.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, MICHIGAN

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Invesimenis

Receivables

Prepaids and other assets

Capital assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated, net

Total assets

Liabilities
Due to other governments
Unearned revenue
Long-term debt:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total Habilities

Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Resiricted for:
Highways and streets
Capital improvements

Unrestricted

Total net assets

Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2011

Component
Unit
Downtown
Governmental Development
Activities Authority
$ 2,085,771 $ 66,939
1,253,247 -
295,111 -
23,692 4,355
167,356 -
5,399,701 -
9,224,878 71,294
86,727 4,575
710 -
1,000 3,650
353,709 -
627,715 -
1,069,921 8,225
4,867,939 -
307,954 -
446,346 -
2,532,718 63,069
$ 8,154,957 $ 63,069

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, MICHIGAN

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges Grants and Grants and Net (Expense)
Functions / Programs Expenses for Scrvices Coniributions  Contributions Revenue
Governmental activities
General government 3 749,854 5 32,503 3 3,064 $ - 8 (714,287
Public safety 843,915 569,372 7,723 - {266,820)
Pubtic works 810,775 816 141,352 122,586 (546,021)
Community and economic development 164,215 14,450 - - (149,765}
Recreation and culture 124,156 8,966 - - (115,190
Interest on long-terin debt 27,236 - - - (27,236)
Total governmental activities 5 2,720,151 5 626,107 5 152,139 3 122,586 $ {1,819,319)
Component unit
Downtown Development Autherity $ 47,805 § - 3 16,811 8 - % {30,994}

(Continued)
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CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, MICHIGAN

Statement of Activities (Concluded)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Component
Unit
Dovwntown
Governmental Development
Activities Authority
Changes in net assets
Net (expense) revenue $ (1,819,319) § (30,994)
General revenues;
Property taxes 1,823,754 36,382
State shared revenues g3,il6 -
Unrestricted investment income 15,140 250
Other general revenue 31,426 -
Total general revenues 1,953,436 36,632
Change in net assets 134,117 5,638
Net assets, beginning of year £,020,840 57,431
Net assets, end of year $ 8,154,957 3 63,069

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, MICHIGAN

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Due from ofther governments
Interest receivable
Deposits with others
Prepaids

Total assets
Liabilities and fund balances

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other governments
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

Total liabilifies

Fund balances (Notc 9)
Nonspendable
Restricted
Commiited
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds

June 39, 2011

Nonmajor Total
General Major Governmental Governmental

Fund Streets Funds Funds
$ 1,321,646 S 217,228 $ 454,397 § 1,993,271
1,253,247 - - 1,253,247
9,186 - - 9,186
135,174 13,077 5,637 153,888
1,656 - - 1,656
- - 130,381 136,381
9,732 806 666 11,204
$ 2,730,641 § 231,101 § 591,081 § 3,552,833
8 53416 § 437 §$ 4,610 % 58,463
382 328 - 710
21,771 1,022 635 23,448
105,000 - 1,000 106,000
180,569 1,787 6,265 188,621
9,732 806 666 11,204
- 228,518 524,310 752,828
935,230 - 59,840 995,070
688,938 - - 688,938
916,172 - - 916,172
2,550,072 229,324 584,816 3,364,212
$ 2730641 § 231,111 § 591,081 § 3,552,833

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, MICHIGAN

Reconciliation of 'und Balances on the Balance Sheet
for Governmental Funds fo Net Assets
of Governmental Activities on the Statentent of Net Assets

June 30, 2011

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 3,364,212

Amounis reporied for governmental activities in the statement of net assets ave different
because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources, and therefore

are not reported in the fund statements,
Capital assets not being depreciated 167,356
Capital assets being depreciated, net 5,234,730

Certain assets, such as special assessments receivable, are not due and receivable in the
current period and therefore are offset with deferred revenue in the fund statements.
Deferred receivabie 105,000

An intemal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of certain activitics,
such as equipment usage and other centralized costs, to individual funds. The assets and
liabilities of the internal service fund are included in governmental activities,
Net assets of governmental activities accounted for in the internal service fund 256,718

Certain liabilities, such as bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period,
and therefore are not reported in the fund statements:

FLong-term debt (699,118)
Litigation settlement (203,938)
Unamertized deferred bond issuance costs 12,488
Compensated absences (78,428)
Accrued interest on long-term debt (4,063)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 8,154,957

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, MICHIGAN
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 36, 2011

Nonmajor Total
General Major Governmental Governntental
Fund Streets Funds Funds
Revenues
Taxes $ 1,823,754 % - % - $  1,823754
Licenses and permits 33,423 - - 33,423
Intergovernmental 747,427 93,443 51,935 892,805
Charges for services 54,346 - 8,966 63,312
Fines and forfeitures 6,344 - - 6,344
Interest revenue 14,178 - 262 15,140
Renfals 500 - - 500
Other revenue 22,642 - 11,348 33,990
Toial revenues 2,702,614 93,443 73,211 2,869,268
Expenditures
Current;
General government 481,546 - - 481,546
Public safety 827,039 - - 827,039
Public works 180,417 162,486 140,120 483,023
Community and economic development 164,215 - - 164,215
Recreation and culture 86,469 - 9,381 95,850
Other functions 25,254 - - 25,254
Debt service:
Principal 41,791 - - 41,791
Interest 23,585 - - 23,585
Bond issuance costs - - 13,500 13,500
Capital outlay 41,965 65,818 97,755 205,538
Total expenditures 1,872,281 228,304 260,756 2,361,341
Revenues over (under) expenditures 830,333 (134,861) (187,545) 507,927
Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of long-term debt - - 325,000 325,000
Transfers in 4,500 130,000 135,000 269,500
Transfers out (265,000) - (4,500) (269,500}
Total other financing sources {uses) (260,500} 130,000 455,500 325,000
Net changes in fund balances 569,833 (4,861) 267,955 832,927
Fund balances, beginning of year, as restated 1,980,239 234,185 316,861 2,531,285
Fund balanees, end of year $ 2,550,072 % 229,324 $ 584,816 $ 3,364,212

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, MICHIGAN

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances
of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Net changes in fund balances - total governimental funds $ 832,927

Amounts reported for govermmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:

Capital outlays are reported as expenditures in governmental funds, but are allocated
over their useful lives as depreciation expense in the statement of activities.

Purchases of capital assets 217,973
Depreciation expense (374,449)

Special assessments receivable are long-term in nature and are collectable over several
years. However, the current receipts are reflected as revenues on the fund statemenis,

Change in deferred long-term receivables (15,000)

Bond proceeds. provide current financial resources to governmental funds in the period
issued, but issuing bonds increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the govermmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.

Principal payments on long-term liabilities 41,791
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt (325,000)
Issuance costs related to long-term debt 13,500

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Accrued interest on bonds (2,639)
Accrual for compensated absences 4,394

Amortization of deferred issuance costs (1,012)
Accrual for litigation settlement (203,938)

An internal service fund is used by management o charge the costs of certain services to
individual governmental funds. The net revenue {expense) attributable to that fund is
reported with governmental activities.

Operating loss from governmental activities in the internal service fund (54,930)
Interest income from governmental activities in the internal service fund 500
Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 134,117

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, MICHIGAN

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Budget and Actual
General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Revenue
Taxes
Licenses and permifs
Intergovernmental revenue
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Interest revenue
Rentals
Other revenue

Total revemies

Expenditures
Current:
General government:
City Councif
Attorney
City manager
Assessing
Elections
Buildings and grounds
Clerk / Treasurer
Other
Total general govemment

Public safety:

Police department

Public works:
Depariment of public works

Community and economic development:

Planning and zoning

Recreation and culture:
Parks depariment

Other:
Insurance
Other

Total other

Variance
from
Original Amended Amended
Budget Budget Actual Budget

$ 1,830,100 § 1,830,100 § 1,823,754 (6,346)

19,200 24,700 33,423 8,723

580,997 581,147 747,427 166,280

52,000 52,500 54,346 1,846

5,000 5,000 6,344 1,344
22,500 22,500 {4,178 (8,322)

500 500 500 -
25,500 25,500 22,642 (2,858)

2,535,797 2,541,947 2,702,614 160,667
17,095 17,105 9,550 (7.555)
90,000 90,000 19,314 {70,686)
118,400 118,430 HE3,3 @717
46,900 46,900 45,860 (1,040)
5,600 5,600 3,523 2,077
63,225 69,245 36,663 (32,582)
248,375 256,774 239,723 (17,051)
15,000 15,000 13,200 (1,800)
604,595 619,054 481,546 {137,508}
919,470 219,103 827,039 {92,064)
257,305 257,685 180,417 (77,268)
200,860 204,935 164,215 (40,720)
104,430 98,370 86,469 (11,901)
26,000 23,633 23,633 -
43,562 43,562 1,621 (41,941)
69,562 67,195 25,254 (41,241)

(Continued)
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CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, MICHIGAN

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in I'und Balance
Budget and Actual (Concluded)
General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Variance
from
Original Amended Amended
Budget Budget Actual Budget
Debt service:
Principal $ 44,600 $ 41,791 § 41,791 -
Interest 24,975 23,684 23,585 (99)
Total debt service 69,575 65,475 65,376 (99)
Capital outlay 49,500 49,630 41,965 {7,665)
Total expenditures 2,275,297 2,281,447 1,872,281 (409,166)
Revenues over (under) expenditures 260,500 260,500 830,333 569,833
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 4,500 4,500 4,500
Transiers ouf (265,000) {265,000) (265,000)
Total other financing sources {uses) {260,500) (260,500) (260,500)
Net change in fund balance - - 569,833 569,833
Fund balance, beginning of year, as restated 1,980,239 1,980,239 1,980,219
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,980,239 $ 1,980,239 § 2,550,072 $ 569,833

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, MICHIGAN

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Budget and Actual
Major Streets Special Revenue Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Yariance
from
Original Amended Amended
Budget Budget Actual Budget
Revenue
Intergovernmental $ 85,000 % 85,000 $ 093,443 % 8,443
Expenditures
Current;

Public works 171,025 182,525 162,486 (20,039)
Capital outlay 40,000 60,285 65,818 (467)
Total expenditures 211,025 248,810 228,304 (20,506)
Revenue over (under) expenditures (126,025) (163,810) (134,861) 28,949

Other financing sources
Transfers in 130,000 130,000 130,000 -
Net change in fund balance 3,975 (33,810) (4,861) 28,949
Fund balance, beginning of year 234,185 234,185 234,185 -
Fund halance, end of year 8 238,160 3 200,375 $ 229,324 $% 28,949

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, MICHIGAN

Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Fund
June 30, 2011
Internal
Service
Fund
Motor Pool
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 92,500
Noncurrent asseis:
Capital assets being depreciated, net 164,971
Total assets 257,471
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 753
Net assets
Invested in capital assets 164,971
Unrestricted 91,747
Total net assets $ 250,718

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, MICHIGAN

Statement of Revenue, Expenses
and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Internal
Service
Fund
Motor Pool

Operating revenue

Charges for services $ 26,000
Operating expenses

Operating supplies 22,610

Depreciation 58,320

Total operating expenses 80,930

Operating loss (54,930)
Nonoperating revenue

Interest income 500
Change in net assets (54,430)
Net assets, beginning of year 311,148
Net assets, end of year $ 256,718

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, MICHIGAN

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from interfund services provided
Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities

Acquisition of capital assets

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest earned on investments

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
Cash flows from operating activities

Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income

to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation
Changes in operating assets and liabilities

which provided cash:
Accounts payable

Net cash provided by operating activities

The accompanying notes are au integral part of these financial statements.

Internal
Service
Fund

Motor Pool

$ 26,000
(22,467)

3,533

(5,586)

500

(1,553)

94,053

8 92,500

$  (54,930)

58,320

143

$ 3,533




CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, MICHIGAN

Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Agency Fund
June 30, 2011
Tax
Collection
Fund
Assets
Due from other governiments 5 9,523
Liabilities
Negative equity in cash and cash equivalents $ 4,069
Undistributed receipts 5,454
Total liabilities $ 9,523

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, MICHIGAN

Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of the Village of Douglas is located in Allegan County, Michigan and has a population of
approximately 1,200. The City operates under a Council-Manager, non-partisan form of government and
provides setvices to its residents in many areas, including general government, law enforcement, highways
and streets,

A regular City election is held in November each year. Councilpersons are elected at large for two-year
terms. At one election, four councilpersons are elected. At the following elections, three councilpersons are
elected. The Council holds and organization meeting at the first regular meeting following the election of its
members. At that time, the Council elects a mayor and a mayor pro-tem from its members.

The accounting policies of the City of the Village of Douglas, (the “City”) conform to generally accepted
accounting principles as applicable to governments. The following is a summary of the most significant

policies:
The Reporting Enftity

Asrequired by generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the City, which is
incorporated under the Home Rule City Act (P.A. 279 of 1979) and is governed by a seven-member Council.
These financial statements present the financial activities of the City and its component unit, the Downtown
Development Authority. The Downtown Development Authority is discretely presented to emphasize that
they are legally separate from the City.

Discretely Presented Component Unit

The Downtown Development Authority is reported on a separate column to emphasize that, while legally
separate, the City of the Village of Douglas remains financially accountable for this entity.

The governing body of the Downtown Development Authority is appointed by the City Council, the
Authority’s budget is subject to the approval of the City Council and the City temporarily relinquishes part of
its tax base to the Authority (tax increment revenues). A separate report is not issued for the Authority.

Joint Ventures
a) Township of Saugatuck Fire District

The Township of Saugatuck Fire District (the “District”) is a joint venture of the City, the Township of
Saugatuck and the City of Saugatuck. The administrative Board of the District consists of five members, two
at-large members and one member from each of the three participating units. The budget of the District is
approved at a joint meeting of the participating units. The participating units levy special millages for fire
protection that are used to finance the cost of operations and capital expenditures of the District. During the
year ended June 30, 2011, the City contributed $133,645 to the District. Complete audited financial
statements for the District can be obtained from the Township of Saugatuck’s Clerk.
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b) Interurban Transit Authority

The Interurban Transit Authority (the “Authority”) is a joint venture of the City, the Township of Saugatuck,
and the City of Saugatuck. The Authority’s Administrative Board consists of six members, two members
appointed by each of the three participating units. During the year ended June 30, 2011, the City contributed
$57,789 to the Authority, Complete audited financial statements for the Authority can be obtained from their
offices or the City of the Village of Douglas’ City Hall.

¢} Kalamazoo Lake Sewer and Water Authority

The Kalamazoo Lake Sewer and Water Authority (the “Authority”) is a joint venture of the City, the
Township of Saugatuck, and the City of Saugatuck. The Authority’s Administrative Board consists of five
members appointed by each of the three participating units. The Authority was formed to operate, maintain,
administer and manage the water and sewerage systems located within the constituent units of government,
During the year ended June 30, 2011, the City contributed $84 to the Authority. Any infrastructure
constructed or paid by the City is recorded as infrastructure on the City’s records. Complete audited financial
statements for the Authority can be obtained from their offices or the City of the Village of Douglas’ City
Hall,

Govermment-wide aind Fund Financial Stafenients

The government-wide financial statements (i.¢., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities)
report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government. For the most part, the
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally
are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. The City has no business-type activities for
the year ended June 30, 2011.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and (2) grants and
coniributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or
segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, internal service funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements,

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and

the accrual basis of accounting, as are the internal service fund and fiduciary fund financial statements,

except for agency funds, which do not have a measurement focus, Revenues are recorded when earned and

expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property

taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. After March 1 of each year, the County

pays the City, and is responsible for collecting, any outstanding real propeity taxes as of that date.
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Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the
provider have been met,

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period, For this purpose, the government considers
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting, However, debt
service expenditures are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, intergovernmental revenue, charges for services and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current
fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is
considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are
considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the City. The City reports the
following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all the financial resources of the
general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Revenues are primarily
derived from property taxes and state shared revenue,

The Major Streets Fund accounts for City tax levy, and state gas and weight tax that are restricted for
expenditures related to maintaining and improving the City’s major streets.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

The Special Reventie Funds are used to account for restricted or committed revenues for specified purposes
other than debt service or capital projects that comptise, or our expected to comprise a substantial portion of
the fund’s total reported inflows.

The Capital Project Funds account for the accumulation and disbursement of financial resources for the
Blue Star Bridge and water and sewer system improvements,

The Internal Service Fund is used to account for motor pool revenues and expenditures, which are used by
other departments.

The Agency Funds account for the collection and disbursements of delinquent taxes and deposits due to
other units and individuals,

Amounts reported as program revenue include: (1) charges to customers of applicants for goods services, or
privileges provided; (2) operating grants and contributions; and (3) capital grants and contributions, including
special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenue rather than as program
revenue. Likewise, general revenue includes all taxes.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed,
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Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operaling revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with
a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operating. The principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds are
charges for services. Operation expenses for the enterprise funds include depreciation on capital assets, labor,
supplies and contracted services. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Comparisons to budget are presented for General and the Major Special Revenue Fund. The City Council
adopts a legally enforceable budget for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds with remaining funds
maintaining budgets as a management controf device. The City follows these procedures in establishing the
budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

{. Priorto June I, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal
year commencing the following July 1,

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.
3. The budgeti is legally enacted through passage of a resolution,

4, TFormal budgetary integration is employed for the government fund types as a management control
device.

5. Budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds are adopted on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Annual budgets lapse at fiscal year end.

6. Adoption and amendments of all budgets used by the City are governed by Public Act 621, which was
followed for the year ended June 30, 2011. Expenditures may not exceed appropriations. The
appropriations resolutions are based on the projected expenditures budget of the department heads of the

City. Any amendment to the original budget must meet the requirements of Public Act 621. Any
revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council.

7. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the City Council.
Budgets for expenditures are adopted on an activity level.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Recelvables

All receivables are recorded at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion
that is expected to be uncollectible.
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Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the government-wide financial statements. The City does not
have a formal policy in place establishing capitalization thresholds, but in practice, capital assets are those
with an initial individual cost of $3,000 or more and an established useful life of more than three years. Such
assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at an estimated historical cost where no
historical records exist, Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date

received,

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
asset lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives

of the refated capital assets, as applicable.
No interest expense has been incurred or capitalized on capital assets reported in proprietary funds.

Depreciation on capital assets (including infrastructure), is computed using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Years
Buildings 40
Improvements 10-15
Enfrastructure 10-40
Machinery and equipment 3-10

Deferred Revenue

The City reports deferred revenue when cash receipts do not meet both the “measurable” and “available”
criteria for recognition in the current period,

Compensated Absences

City employees are granted vacation, sick leave, and personal leave in varying amounts, Certain non-salaried,
non-FLSA exempt City employees may also elect to accumulate compensatory time up to certain varying
maximum limits in lieu of taking overtime pay. In the event of termination, an employee is paid for
accumulated vacation, half of sick leave time, and personal days and compensatory time. All employees with
accumulated vacation, half of sick leave time, and personal days and compensatory time at June 30, 2011,
were vested and the total due to the employees, along with the related payroll taxes, is recorded entirely in the
government-wide financial statements.

Long-tern Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, the tong-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported
as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities statement of net assets. For new bond issuances of
governmental funds after the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34 and all proprietary fund bond issues,
bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the straight-line method which approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported
net of the applicable bond premium or discount.
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Property Taxes

The City of the Village of Douglas bills and collects its own property taxes and also taxes for other
governmental units. The City’s property tax revenue recognition policy and related tax calendar disclosures
are highlighted in the following paragraph.

Property taxes are levied by the City of the Village of Douglas on July 1 are payable without penalty through
September 15. The July 1 levy is composed of the City’s millages, County’s operating millage, school taxes
and State Education Tax. The December 1 fevy is composed of County’s Senior and Road millage, Transit
Authority, District Library, Fire District, and school taxes. All real propesty faxes not paid to the City by
March 1 are turned over to the Allegan County Treasurer for collection. The Allegan County Treasurer
purchases the receivables of all taxing districts on any delinquent real property taxes. City property tax
revenues are recognized as revenue in the fiscal year levied.

Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous transactions between funds, including
expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services and to service debt. The accompanying financial
statements generally reflect such transactions as transfers, Operating subsidies are also recorded as fransfers.

The Internal Service Fund (Motor Pool) records charges for equipment rental to various City departments and
funds as operating revenue, All City funds record these payments as operating expenditures/expense,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Fund Equity

Governmental fimds report nonspendable fund balance for amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Restricted
fund balance is reported when externally imposed constraints are placed on the use of resources by grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governmenis, Committed fund balance is reported for amounts
that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the
government’s highest level of decision-making authority, the City Council. A formal resolution of the City
Council is required to establish, modify, or rescind a fund balance commitment. The City reports assigned
fund balance for amounts that are constrained by the government’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but
are neither restricted nor committed. Based on the City’s fund balance policy, the City Council has authorized
the City manager the ability to assign fund balance, Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for
the general fund.
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2. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits and investments consist of the following at June 30, 2011:

Governmental Agency Component
Activities Fund Unit Total
Cash and cash equivalents § 2,085,771 $ - 5 66,939 2,152,710
Investments 1,253,247 - - 1,253,247
Negative equily in cash and
cash equivalents - {4,069) - {4,069)
Total $ 3,339,018 $ (4,069) $ 66,939 3,401,888
Deposits and investments consist of the following at June 30, 2011:

Bank deposits 467,976

Certificates of deposit (due within one year) 1,253,350

Investments 1,680,562

Total 3,401,888

Deposits

These deposits and investments are in eight (8) financial institutions located in Michigan in varying amounts.
State policy limits the Treasurer’s investing options to financial instifutions located in Michigan. All accounts
are in the name of the City and a specific fund or common account. They are recorded in the City’s records at

cost, Interest is recorded when earned.

The City’s investment policy does not specifically address this risk, although the City believes that due to the
dollar amounts of cash deposits and the limits of FDIC insurance, it is impractical to insure all bank deposits.
As a result, the City evaluales each financial institution with which it deposits City funds and assesses the
level of risk of each institution; only those institutions with an acceptable estimated risk level are used as

depositories.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s
deposits may not be returned. State law does not require, and the City does not have, a policy for deposit
custodial credit risk. As of year end, $328,740 of the City’s bank balance of $1,623,237 was exposed to
custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Statutory Authority

Act 217, PA 1982, authorizes the City to deposit and invest in:

a. Bonds and other direct obligations of the United States or its agencies.

b. Certificates of deposit, savings accounts, deposit accounts or depository receipts of a qualified financial

institution.
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¢. Commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the two highest classifications established by not
less than two standard rating services and that matures not more than 270 days after the date of purchase.

d. Bankers acceptances of United States banks.

e. Obligations of the State of Michigan and its political subdivisions that, at the time of purchase are rated as
investment grade by at least one standard rating service.

f.  Mutual funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 with the authority to purchase only
investient vehicles that are legal for direct investment by a public corporation.

g. Extemal investment pools as authorized by Public Act 20 as amended through 12/31/97.

The City chooses to disclose its investments by specifically identifying each. As ofyear end, the City had the
following investments:

Investment Maturity Fair Value Rating
MBIA Class Fund Various $ 1,329,177 S&P/AAA
Money Market Funds Various 351,385 Unrated
Total investiments $ 1,680,562

Investment Risk

Interest Rate Risk. State law limits the allowable investiments and the maturities of some of the allowable
investments as identified under “statutory authority” above. The City’s investment policy does not have
specific limits in excess of state law on investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair
value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The maturity date for each investment is identified above
for investments held at year end.

Credit Risk. State law limits investments to specific government securities, certificates of deposits and bank
accounts with qualified financial institutions, commercial paper with specific maximum maturities and ratings
when purchased, bankers acceptances of the City’s specific financial institutions, qualified mutual funds, and
qualified external investment pools as identified in “statutory authority” above. The City’s investment policy
does not allow investments in banker acceptances or mutual funds. The credit rating on the City’s
investments are identified above.

Custodial Credit Risk— Investments, For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of
the failure of the counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.

Concentration of Credit Risk. State law limits allowable investments but does not limit concentration of
credit risk. The City minimizes concentration of credit risk by diversifying the investment portfolio so that
the impact of potential losses from any one type of security or issuer will be minimized. All investments held
at year-end are reported above.
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3. RECEIVABLES AND DEFERRED REVENUE

At June 30, 2011, the City’s receivables were as follows:

Nenmajor
Major Governmental
General Streets Funds Totals
Accounts $ 9,186 ) - 3 - $ 9,186
Due for other governments 135,174 13,077 5,637 153,888
Interest - 1,656 - 1,656
Deposits with others - - 130,381 130,381
Total $ 144,360 3 14,733 3 136,018 $ 295,111

Of the amounts reported for receivables above, an amount due from other governments of $90,000 is not

expected to be collected within one year.

Govermmental funds report deferred revenues in connection with revenues that are not yet considered to be
available to liquidate liabilities of the current period, which inctudes a long-term receivable from Saugatuck

Townskip for $105,000.

4, CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended Jone 30, 2011 was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2010 Additions Disposals June 30, 2011
Capital assets, not being
depreciated:

Land $ 93,800 8 - $ - $ 93,800

Construction in progress 187,614 64,082 (178,140) 73,556
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 281,414 64,082 (178,140) 167,356
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings 788,665 15,693 - 804,362

Improvements 538,617 - - 538,617

Machinery and equipment 131,478 30,247 (23,812) 737,913

Infrastructure 7,309,913 291,677 - 7,601,590
Total capital assets, being depreciated 9,368,677 337,617 23,812 9,682,482
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings (356,542) (35,682) - {392,224)

Improvements (179,945) (28,399) - (208,344)

Machinery and equipment {440,038) (86,385) 23,812 (502,611)

Infrastructure (2,897,299) (282,303) - (3,179,602}
Total accumulated depreciation (3,873,824) (432,769) 23,812 (4,282,781}
Net capifal assets, being depreciated 5,494 853 (95,152) - 5,399,701
Net governmental activities capital assets 8§ 5,776,267 $ (31,070) $  (178,140) $ 5,567,057
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:

General government
Public safety

Public works
Recreation and culture
Internal service fund

Total depreciation expense

5. PAYABLES, AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

At June 30, 2011, the City’s payables and accrued liabilities were as follows:

Fund

General Fund

Major Streels

Nonmajor governmental funds
Internal service fund

Subtotal
Accrued interest on long-term debt

Total

-30-

$ 33,830
19,760
306,684
14,175
58,320
$ 432,769
Accounts Payroll Totals
$ 53416 § 21,71 $ 75,187
437 1,022 1,459
4,610 655 5,265
753 - 753
$ 59,216 $ 23448 82,664

4,063
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT

The following is a suinmary of debt transactions of the City for the year ended June 30, 2011:

Governmental activities

$190,000 Loan agreement dated
March 17, 2006, due in monthly
installments ranging from $689 to
$1,509 through March 1, 2021, with
interest of 5.14%.

$448,403 Loan agreement dated July
10, 2004, due in monthly
installments ranging from $560 to
$3,549 through August 10, 2017,
with interest of 3.5%.

$325,000 2010 Capital Improvement
Bonds dated October 1, 2010, due in
annual installments ranging from
$25,000 to $40,000 through October
I, 2020, with interest paid semi-
annually at 5%,
Subtotal installment debt
Litigation settlement

Compensated absences

Total governmental activities

Due
Balance Balance Within
July 1, June 30, One
2010 Additions Deletions 2011 Year
$ 149,513 $ - 3 (1L123) $ 138,390 $ 11,252
266,396 - (30,668) 235,728 35,091
- 325,000 - 325,000 25,600
415,909 325,000 {41,791) 699,118 71,343
- 203,938 - 203,938 203,938
82,822 92,140 {96,534) 78,428 78,428
$ 498,731 $ 621,078 3 (138,325) $ 981,484 $ 353,709

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding (excluding long-term compensated absences and
litigation seitlements) as of June 30, 2011 are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

2017-2021

Total

Governmental Activities

Principal Interest

$ 71,343 § 30,278
73,213 27,158
80,139 23,857
82,144 20,352
84,223 16,773
308,056 34,854

$ 699,118 % 153,272
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7. PENSION PLANS
Defined Benefit Plan

The City participates in the Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of Michigan (MERS), an agent multi-
employer defined benefit pension plan providing retirement, death and disability benefits covering certain
bargaining units. The System is administered by the MERS retirement board. Act No. 427 ofthe Public Acts
of 1984, as amended, establishes and amends the benefit provisions of the participants in MERS, A publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for
MERS may be obtained by writing to the Municipal Employees Retirement System of Michigan, 447 N
Canal, Lansing, Michigan 48917 or by calling (800} 767-6377.

The City is required to contribute at an actuarially determined amount, which for the cuirent year was
$123,669. The contribution requirements of the City are established and may be amended by the MERS
Retirement Board. The coniribution requirements of plan members are established and may be amended by
the City depending on the MERS contribution program adoption by the City.

For the year ended June 30, 2011, the City’s annual pension cost of $123,669 for MERS was equal to the
City’s required and actual confributions. The required confribution was determined as part of the
December 31, 2008 actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions
included: (a) a rate of return on the investment of present and future assets of eight (8.0) percent; and (b)
projected salary increases of four and one-half (4.5) percent per year, compounded annually based on
inflation, plus a percentage based on an age-related scale fo reflect merit, longevity and promotional salary
increases. The actuarial value of MERS assets was determined on the basis of a vatuation method that
assumes the fund eams the expected rate of return and includes an adjustment to reflect fair value. The City’s
unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open
basis, The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2010, the date of the latest actuarial valuation, was
28 years.

Trend Information

Annual Percentage Net
Pension of APC Pension
Year Ended Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
2009 $ 96,663 100% $ .
2010 112,786 100% -
2011 123,669 100% -

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2010, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the
plan was 76 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $2,216,487, and the actuarial
value of assets was $1,691,096, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $525,391. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $781,445, and the ratio of the
UAAL to the covered payroll was 67 percent,

32



CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, MICHIGAN

Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements, presents
multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over
time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Defined Contribution Plan

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan sponsored by ICMA Retirement Corporation,
which is a compensation plan created in accordance with IRC Section No. 457, The deferred compensation is
not available to the individual until termination, retirement, or death, or unforeseeable emergency. The City’s
deferred compensation program is administered by the ICMA Retirement Corporation.

The City also has three employees who participate in a 457 deferred compensation plan administered through
Nationwide. The deferred compensation is not available to the individual until termination, retirement, or
death, or unforeseeable emergency.

The City also participates in defined contribution option provided by MERS, covering the City Manager. The
contribution requirements of plan members, if any, are established and may be amended by the City,
depending on the MERS contribution program adopted by the City. The City is required to contribute 12% of
the Manager’s gross wages. The City’s contributions for the year ended June 30, 2011 totaled $9,378.

INTERFUND TRANSFERS
Transiers in:
Nonmajor
General Major governmental
Fund Streets funds Total
Transfers out:
General Fund $ - $ 130,000 $ 135,000 § 265,000
Nonmajor governmental funds 4,500 - - 4,560
Total 3 4,500 $ 130,000 3 135000 % 269,500

Transfers are used to: (1) move revenues from the fund that is required to collect them to the fund that is
required or allowed to expend them; (2) move receipts restricted to or allowed for debt service from the funds
collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due; and (3) use unrestricted
revenues collected in the general fund to financial various programs accounted for in other funds in
accordance with budgetary authorizations,

FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The District adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental
Fund Type Definitions, in the current year. GASB 54 establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a
hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon
the use of the resources reported in governmental funds. While the classifications of fund balance in the City's
various governmental funds were revised, the implementation of this standard had no effect on total fund
balance. Beginning fund balance of the General Fund increased by $810,906, which was comprised of
amounts previously reported in the Road Millage special revenue fund. Detailed information on fund balances
of governmental funds is as follows:
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CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, MICHIGAN

Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Major Nonmajor
General Streets  Governmental
Fund Fund Funds Total
Nonspendable for:
Prepaids $ 9,732 % 806 % 666 $ 11,204
Restricted for:
Highways and streets - 228,518 77,964 306,482
Capital improvements - - 446,346 446,346
- 228,518 524,310 752,828
Committed for:
Highways and streets 935,230 - - 935,230
Special events - - 7,427 7,427
Recreation and culture - - 52,413 52,413
935,230 - 59,840 995,070
Assigned for:
Litigation settlement 203,938 - - 203,938
Land acquisition 200,600 - - 200,000
Pension confribution 285,000 - - 285,000
688,938 - - 688,938
Unassigned 916,172 - - 916,172
Total fund balances $2550,072 $ 229324 § 584,816 § 3,364,212

10. NET ASSETS INVESTED IN CAPITAL ASSETS, NET OF RELATED DEBT

The composition of net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt as of June 30, 2011, was as
follows:

Capital assets:

Capital assefs not being depreciated $ 167,356
Capital assets being depreciated, net 5,399,701
5,567,057

Related debt:
Total bonds and notes payable 699,118

Invested in capital assets, net of capltal-
related debt $ 4,867,939
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CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, MICHIGAN

Notes to Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

11,

12.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City participates in a pool, the Michigan Municipal League Liability and Property Pool with other
municipalities for property, lability, in-land marine, boiler and machinery, anto, and crime. The pool is
organized under Public Act 138 of 1982, as amended as a governmental group property and casualty self
insurance pool. In the event that the pool’s claims and expenses for a policy year exceed the total normal
annual premiums for said years, all members of the specific pool’s policy year may be subject to special
assessment to make up the deficiency. The City has not been informed of any special assessments being
required.

The City also participates in a pool, the Michigan Municipal Workers® Compensation Fund, with other
municipalities for worker’s compensation losses. The pool is organized under Public Act 317 of 1969, as
amended. In the event the pool’s claims and expenses for a policy year exceed the total normal annual
premiums for said years, all members of the specific pool’s policy year may be subject to special assessment
to mnake up the deficiency. The City has not been informed of any special assessments being required.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The City is party to various pending legal actions, It is the opinion of the City's legal counsel that it is not
reasonably possible to determine the outcome of these matters at this time. However, management has

estimated that the City’s potential liability, if any, above amounts that would be covered by insurance, would
likely be immaterial.

A settlement did occur during the fiscal year that resulted in an expected liability of $203,938 as of
June 30, 2011, This liability had not been paid as of year and therefore has been recorded in the
governmental-wide financial statements.

* & & k%
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CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, MICHIGAN

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial UAAL asa
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Yalue of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) Total {c) ((b-a)/c)
12/31/2005 $1,113,392 $1,407,308 § 293916 79% 5 682,016 43%
12/31/2006 1,280,631 1,663,832 383,201 T1% 738,339 52%
12/31/2007 1,404,289 1,799,344 395,055 78% 630,356 63%
12/31/2008 1,476,585 1,975,079 498,494 75% 653,935 76%
12/31/2009 1,571,699 2,278,110 706,411 69% 911,052 78%
12/31/2010 1,691,096 2,216,487 525,391 76% 781,445 67%
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CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, MICHIGAN

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2011

Special Revenue
Local Special Schultz Park
Streets Events Launch Ramp
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 72,982 § 8427 % 52,413
Due from other governmenis 5,637 - -
Deposits with others - - -
Prepais 666 - -
Total assets $ 79,285 § 8427 3§ 52,413
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - 3 - 8 -
Accrued liabilities 655 - -
Deferred revenue - 1,000 -
Total liabilities 655 1,000 -
Fund balances
Nonspendable 666 - -
Restricted 77,964 - -
Committed - 7,427 52,413
Total fund balances 78,630 7,427 52,413
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 79285 § 8427 § 52,413
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Capital Projects

Water and
Sewer Blue Star
Revolving Bridge Total

$ 62,120 $ 258455 $ 454,397
- 5,637
130,381 - 130,381
- 666

$ 192,501 § 258,455 $ 591,081

$ - $ 4610  $ 4,610
- - 655

) . 1,000

; 4,610 6,265

- - 666

192,501 253,845 524,310

- - 59,840

192,501 253,845 584,816

§ 192,501 § 258,455 $ 591,081
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CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS, MICHIGAN

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Revenues
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Interest revenue
Other revenue

Total revenues
Expenditures
Cuirent;
Public works
Recreation and culture
Debt:
Bond issuance costs
Capiial outlay
Total expenditutes
Revenue over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Issuance of long-term debt
Transfers in
Transfers oul
Total other financing souzces (uses)
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

-30-

Special Revenue

Local Special Schultz Park
Streets Events ELaunch Ramp

5 42,494 % - % -
- - 8,966
- - 250
- 11,348 -
42,494 11,348 9,216
111,492 - -
- 5,628 3,753
40,000 - -
151,492 5,628 3,753
(108,998) 5,720 5,463
135,000 - -

- - (4,500)

135,000 - {(4,500)
26,002 5,720 963

52,628 i,707 51,450
$ 78,630 § 7427 8 52,413




Capital Projects

Water
and Sewer Blue Star
Revolving Bridge Total
$ 9441 $ - $ 51,935
- - 8,966
612 100 262
- - 11,348
10,053 100 73,211
28,628 - 140,120
- - 9,381
- 13,500 13,500
- 57,755 97,755
28,628 71,255 260,756
(18,575) (71,155) (187,545)
- 325,000 325,000
- - 135,000
- - (4,500)
- 325,060 455,500
{18,575) 253,845 267,955
211,076 - 316,861

$ 192,501 § 253,845 $ 584,816
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?,%Z e h m a n n Rehmann Robson
2330 Easl Paris Ave., SE
Grand Rapids, MI 49546
Ph: 6169754100
Fx: 616.975.4400
www.rchmani.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Qctober 13, 2011

Honorable Mayor and Members of
the City Council
City of the Village of Douglas, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of the
Villuge of Douglas, Michigan, (the “City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 201 1, which collectively
comprise the City’s financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated [Date]. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no
assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been identified. However,
as described below, we identified a certain deficiency in internal control over financial reporting that we
consider to be a material weakness and another deficiency that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

A deficiency in internal confrol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A marerial weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency
beilow to be a material weakness,
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Finding 2011-1 — Preparation of Financial Statements in Accordance with GAAP/
Material Audit Adjustments
Material Wenkness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Criteria. All Michigan governments ave required to prepare financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). This is a responsibility of the government’s
management. The preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires internal controls
over both (1) recording, processing, and summarizing accounting data (i.e., maintaining internal books
and records), and (2) reporting government-wide and fund financial statements, including the related
footnotes (i.e., external financial reporting.)

Condition. As is the case with many smaller and medium-sized entities, the government has historically
relied on its independent external auditors to assist in the preparation of the government-wide financial
statements and footnotes as part of its external financial reporting process. In addition, a material audit
adjustment was necessary to record additional amounts payable by the Downtown Development
Authority component unit,

Accordingly, the government’s ability to prepare general purpose external financial statements in
accordance with GAAP is based, in part, on its reliance on its external auditors, who cannot by definition
be considered a part of the government’s internal controls.

Cause, This condition was caused by the government’s decision that it is more cost effective {o outsource
the preparation of its annual financial statements to the auditors than to incur the time and expense of
obtaining the necessary training and expertise required for the government to perform this task internally.

Effect. As a result of this condition, the government’s accounting records were initially misstated by an
amount material to the financial statements of the Downtown Development Authority component unit.
Further, the government lacks complete internal controls over the preparation of financial statements in
accordance with GAAP, and instead relies, in part, on its external auditors for assistance with this task.

Recommendation. The material audit adjustment was related to accounts payable accruals in the
Downtown Development Authority that were initially overlooked. The related correcting entries have
been reviewed and approved by management, and no further corrective action is required at this time.

View of Responsible Officials. The government has evaluated the benefit of establishing internal
controls over the preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP, and determined that it is
in the best interests of the government to outsource this task to its external auditors, and to carefully
review the proposed journal entries, draft financial statements and notes prior to approving them and
accepting responsibility for their content and preseatation.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We
consider the deficiency below to be a significant deficiency.

Finding 2011-2 — Segregation of Incompatible Duties
Significant Deficiency in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Criteria. Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal controls in order

to safeguard the assets of the City. A key element of internal controf is the segregation of incompatible
duties within the accounting function.
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Condition, The City has several transaction cycles that are performed by the same individual or are not
subject to independent review and approval, including: (1) responsibilities for payroll accounting are not
separated from the general ledger function, (2) after payroll is processed, there is no comparison of
approved timesheets to the payroll register for accuracy, (3) cash deposit are made by an individual who
is also responsible for posting receipts and preparing deposit slips, (4) bank accounts are not reconciled
by individuals independent of cash receipts and disbursements functions, or consistently reviewed by an
independent employee, (5) maintenance of the receivable subsidiary ledger is not independent of general
ledger maintenance, and (6) there is no independent review of general journal entries posted to the

general fedger,
Cause. This condition is the result of staffing constraints typical of smaller governmental units.

Effect. As a result of this condition, the City is exposed to an increased risk that misstatements (whether
caused by error or fraud) may not be prevented or detected by management on a timely basis.

Recommendation. There are, of course, no easy answers to the challenge of balancing the costs and
benefits of internal controls and the segregation of incompatible duties. Recognizing this fact, we
encourage the City to mitigate this risk by requiring as much documented independent review,
reconciliation, and approval of accounting functions by qualified members of management as possible.

View of Responsible Officials. Management recognizes that this limitation is a natural outgrowth of the

small number of full-time staff, and applies its judgment in determining how best to allocate the City’s
resources to provide an appropriate balance between sound internal controls and fiscal prudence.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts, However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion, The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing

Standards.

In addition, we noted certain matters that we reported to management of the City in a separate letter dated
October 13, 201 1.

The City’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described above. We did not audit the City’s
responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the City, others within the entity,
federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by

anyone other than these specified parties.
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: e h m a n n Rehmann Robson

2330 East Paris Ave., SI
Grand Rapids, MI 49546
Ph: 616.975.4100
Fx: 616,9754400
www.rehimann.com

October 13, 2011

Honorable Mayor and Members of
the City Council
City of the Village of Douglas, Michigan

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely presented
component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
the Village of Douglas (the “City”) for the year ended June 30, 2011, and have issued our repoit
thereon dated October 13, 2011, Professional standards require that we provide you with the
following information related to our audit,

Our Responsibility Under Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United States of
America

As stated in our engagement letter dated August 1, 2011, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to express opinions about whether the financial statements prepared by
management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, Our audit of the
financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the City. Such considerations were
solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance
concerning such internal control.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of City’s compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants, However, the objective of our tests was not to provide an

opinion on compliance with such provisions,

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to
you in our engagement letter and in our meeting about planning matters on September 6, 2011,

£\
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Significant Results of the Audit

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In
accordance with the ferms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies
used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. Other than the adoption of
GASB Statement No. 54, which is described in Note 9 to the financial statements, no other
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during
the year. We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a
lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions that have been
recognized in the financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management
and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and
assumptions about future events., Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates
affecting the financial statements were:

*  Management’s estimate of the useful lives of depreciable capital assets is based on
the length of time it is believed that those assets will provide some economic benefit

in the future.

= Management’s estimate of the accrued compensated absences is based on current
hourly rates and policies regarding payment of sick and vacation banks,

»  Management’s estimate of the allowance for uncollectible receivable balances is
based on past experience and future expectation for collection of various account
balances.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in determining
that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficultics in dealing with management in performing and
completing our audit,
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Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

The attached schedule summarizes uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements.
Management has corrected all such misstatements, In addition, we proposed various audit
adjustments, all of which were recorded by management, which collectively had a material effect
on the City’s financial reporting process.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction,
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to
report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the attached
management representation letter dated October 13, 2011.

Management Consulitations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on cerfain sifuations., If a
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the entity’s financial statements or
a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with
other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the governmental unit’s

auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of the governing body and management of the
City of the Village of Douglas and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Rlans b



City of the Village of Douglas
Attachment A - Consideration of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City of the Village of
Douglas (the “City”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the City’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control,

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and, thercfore, there can be no assurance that all
such deficiencies have been identified.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct misstatements on a fimely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. The deficiency we noted that we consider to be a material weaknesses is
described in our report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other
matters based on an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with Govermment

Auditing Standards.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. The deficiency we noted that we consider to be significant deficiency is described in
our report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other matters based on
an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

Other Matters
Outdated Reconciling Items on Bank Reconciliations
During our review of bank reconciliations, we noted that there are several outstanding checks older

than one year. We recommend that the City make reasonable efforts to locate the rightful recipients
of such funds and then escheat any remaining amounts to the State under applicable statutes.
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City of the Village of Douglas
Attachment A - Consideration of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Internal Controls over Information Technology

During our audit, we reviewed a list of recommended internal controls over information technology
with management. We noted that several of these controls (such as the development and testing of a
disaster recovery plan, user stations programmed to time-out after a period of inactivity, and
detection or prevention of unauthorized software use) are not in place. We recommend that these
controls be evaluated for potential effectiveness at the City, and implemented where deemed
beneficial.

k k& & k&
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CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF DOUGLAS
Aftachment B - Schedule of Adjustments Passed (SOAP)
For the June 30, 2011 Audit

In accordance with the provisions of SAS 107, Audit Risk and Materiality , we have prepared the following
schedule of proposed audit adjustments, which we believe are immaterial both individually and in the
aggregate. Also in accordance with SAS 107, we are providing this schedule to both managementand the
audit committee to receive their assurance that they agree that the amounts listed below are not material to
the financial statements, either individually or in the aggregate, and do not need to be recorded.

Effect of Passed Adjustment - Over(Under)Statemen

Beginning Expenses/
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue  Expenditures
General Fund
Accounts payable includes an
invoice accrued for services
rendered during fiscal year 2012. ¢ - % 1,067 $ - % -8 1,067

Governmental Activitie
Effect of items noted abowve 3 - 8 £,067 § - % - $ 1,067
Beginning accumulated
depreciation difference between
prior year audited financial
statements and the capital asset
detail, corrected in 2011, - - (13,570) - (13,570)

$  (12,503)

Total governmental aciivities $ - 8 1,067 $ (13,570) 3
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Rehtmann Robson
2330 East Paris Ave,
Grand Rapids, M1 49546

We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the financial statements of City of the
Village of Douglas as of June 30, 2011 and for the year then ended for the purpose of expressing opinions
as to whether the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental aclivities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, the major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of the Village of Douglas and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We confirm that we are responsible for the
fair presentation of the previously mentioned financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We are also responsible for adopling sound
accounting policics, establishing and maintaining effective internal control, and preventing and detecting

fraud,

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as ol 10/13/2011, the following representations
made (o you during your audil.

1, The financial statements veferved {o above are fairly presented in conformily with sccounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and include all properly classified
funds and other financial information of the primary government and all component units
required by generally accepted accounting principles to be included in the financial reporting

entity.
2, We have made available to you all—
a Financial records and related data.
b. Minutes of the mectings of City Councii or summaries of actions of recent meetings for
which minutes have not yet been prepared.
3. There have been no communications from regulatory agencics concerning noncompliance with,

or deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

4. There are no naterial transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records
underlying the financial stalements,

5. We believe the effects of the uncorrected financial statement misstatements summarized in the
attached scheduic are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial
statements taken as a whole. In addition, you have proposed acjusting journal entries that have
been posted. We are in agreement with those adjustments,
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6. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design and implementation of programs and controls
to prevent and detect fraud,

7. We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity involving:
a. Managsient,
b, Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or
c. Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements,

8. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity received
in communications from employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, or others.

9. We have a process fo track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

10. We have identified to you any previous financial audits, attestation engagements, peiformance

audits, or other studies related to the objectives of the audit being undertaken and the corvective
actions taken to address significant findings and recommendations.

11, We have provided our views on reported findings, conclusions, and recommendations, as well as
oiir planned corrective actions, for the report.

12, The City has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification
of assets, liabililies, or equity.

I3 The following, if any, have been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial statements:

a. Related party transactions, including revenues, expendituresfexpenses, loans, transfers,
leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related

parties.

For the purposes of this letter, related parties mean members of the governing body;
board members; adininistrative officials; immediate families of administrative officials,
board members, and members of the governing body; and any companies affiliated with
or owned by such individuals,

b. Guarantees, whether written or oval, under which the City is contingently fiable.

c. All accounting estimates that could be material to the financial statements, including the
key factors and significant assumptions underlying those estimates and measurements,
We believe ihe estimates and measurements are reasonable in the circumstances,
consistently applied, and adequately disclosed.

14, We are responsibie for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and
grant agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts; and we have
identified and disclosed to you all laws, regulations and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements that we believe have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts, or other financial data significant to the audit objectives, including legal and
confractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.
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15. There are no—

a, Violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, faws and regulations (including
those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of contracts
and grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose effects
should be considered for discloswre in the financial statements, or as a basis for recording
a loss contingency, or for reporting on noncompliance.

b.. Unasserted claims or assessments that our lawyer has advised us are probable of assertion
and must be disclosed in accordance with Financial Accouniing Stemdards Board (FASB)

Statement No, 5, Accounting for Contingencies,

c. Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed
by FASB Statement No. 5.

d. Reservations or designation of fund equity that were not properly authorized and
approved,

16. As part of your audit, you prepared the draft financial statements and related notes. We have
designated a compoetent management-level individual to oversee your services and have made all
management decisions and performed all management functions, We have reviewed, approved,
and accepted responsibility for those financial statements and related notes.

17. The City has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on such
assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

18. The City has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material
effect on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.

19.  The financial statements include all component units as well as joint ventures with an equity
interest, and properly disclose all other joint ventures and other related organizations.

20, The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities.

21. All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Statement Nos, 34 and 37 for presentation
as major are identified and presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major are
particularly important to financial statement users.

22, Net asset components (invested {n capital assets, net of related debt; restricted; and unrestricted)
and fund balance reserves and designations are properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

23, Provisions for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded.

24, Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the
statement of activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.

25, Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activilies within program revenues,
general revenues, contributions to terin or permanent endowments, or contributions to permanent
fund principal,

86 W. Center Street + P.O. Box 757 + Douglas, Michigan 49406-0757 + Phone (269) 857-1438 + Fax (269) 857-4751 + www.douglasinichigan.com
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26, Interfund, internal, and intva-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and
reported.

27, Deposits and investinent securities are properly classified as to risk, and invesiments are properly
valued.

28. Capital assets, including infrastructure assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and, if
applicable, depreciated,

29. Required supplementary information (RSI) is measured and presented within prescribed
guidelines,

No events, including instances of noncompliance, have occurred subsequent to the balance sheet date and
through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the aforementioned

financial statements.

R UA

illiam LeFevere, City Manager N Robert Drexler, City Tréasurer

86 W, Center Street s P.O. Box 757 + Douglas, Michigan 49406-0757 + Phone (269) 857-1438 » Fax (269) 857-4751 » www.douglasmichigan.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Trustees
Township of Saugatuck, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Township of
Saugatuck, Michigan, as of June 30, 2011, and for the year then ended, which collectively
comprise the Township of Saugatuck, Michigan’s basic financial statements, as listed in
the contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Township of
Saugatuck, Michigan's management, Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We pelieve that our audit provides a reasonable

basis for our opinions.

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Township of Saugatuck, Michigan, as
of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended
in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As described in Note 15 to the financial statements, the Township adopted the provisions
of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions.

The management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and the
schedule of funding progress of the employee retirement system, as listed in the contents,
are not required parts of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information.
However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.



Board of Trustees
Township of Saugatuck, Michigan
Page 2

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the basic financial
statements that collectively comprise the Township of Saugatuck, Michigan’s basic
financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information, as listed in the
contents, Is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
basic financial statements of the Township of Saugatuck, Michigan. Such information has
heen subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the

basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Qctober 25, 2011
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Township of Saugatuck
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the Township of Saugatuck’s ({the Township) financial performance
provides a narrative overview of the Township's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2011. Please read it in conjunction with the Township’s financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

« The Township's total net assets decreased by $217,649 (3 percent) as a resuit of this year's

operations.
. Total net assets at the end of the fiscal year were $6,930,838. However, $4,777,954 of this total is

invested in capital assets, net of related debt, and $2,025,648 is restricted for various purposes.
Consequently, the Township has unresiricted net assets of $108,236.

« The General Fund’s unassigned fund balance at the end of the fiscal year was $213,236, which
represents 43 percent of the actual total General Fund expenditures for the fiscal year.

Overview of the financial statements

The Township’s basic financial statements are comprised of four parts: management’s discussion and
analysis, the basic financial statements, required supplementary information, and an optional section that
presents combining statements for nonmajor governmental funds. The basic financial statements include
two kinds of statements that present different views of the Township:

« The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and
short-term information about the Township's overall financial status.

e The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of the Township
government, reporting the Township’'s operations in more detail than the government-wide financial

statements.
Governmental funds statements explain how general government services, like public works

and public safety, were financed in the short term, as well as what remains for future
spending.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial
statements and provide more detailed data. The financial statements are followed by sections of required
supplementary information and other supplementary information that further explain and support the

information in the financial statements.

A comparative analysis of the hasic financial statements for 2011 and 2010 is also presented.

Government-wide financial statements

The government-wide financial statements report information about the Township as a whole using
accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The Statement of Net Assets
includes all of the Township’s assets and liabilities. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are
accounted for in the Statement of Activities, regardless of when cash is received or paid.



Township of Saugatuck
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

The two government-wide statements report the Township’s net assets and how they have changed. Net
assets (the difference between the Township's assets and liabilities) is one way to measure the

Township’s financial health, or position.

* Over time, increases or decreases in the Township's net assets are an indicator of whether its

financial health is improving or deteriorating, respectively.
+ To assess the overall health of the Township, you need to consider additional nonfinancial factors,
such as changes in the Township’s property tax base and the condition of the Township's capital

assets.

The government-wide financial statements present governmental activities. All of the Township’s basic
services are included here, such as general government, public works, parks, etc. Property taxes and
intergovernmental revenues generally fund these services.

Fund financial statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the Township’s most significant
funds - not the Township as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the Township uses to keep track

of specific sources of funding and spending for particular purposes.

» Some funds are required by state law and by bond agreements.
» The Township Board establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or

to show that it is properly using certain taxes and other revenues.

The Township has one kind of fund:

» Governmental funds. The Township’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which
focus on (1) how cash, and other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash, flows in
and out, and (2} the balances left at year end that are available for spending. Consequently, the
governmental funds statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps determine whether
there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the
Township's programs. Because this information does not encompass the additional long-term focus
of the government-wide statements, we provide additional information that explains the relationship

between them.




Township of Saugatuck
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWNSHIP AS AWHOLE

Net assets. Total net assets at the end of the fiscal year were $6,005,838, a decrease of $217,648 over
the prior year. However, $4,777,954 of this total is invested in capital assets, net of related debt, and
$2,044,648 is restricted for various purposes. Consequently, the Township has unrestricted net assets of

$108,236.

Condensed financial information

Net assels
2011 2010
Current and other assets $ 2,472,307 $ 3,125,741
Capital assets 6,152,954 5,033,074
Total assets 8,625,261 9,058,815
Current and other liabilities 214,423 265,328
Long-term debt outstanding 1,480,000 1,645,000
Total liabilities 1,694,423 1,910,328
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 4,777,954 4,408,074
Restricted 2,044,648 2,749,847
Unrestricted (deficit) 108,236 (9,434)
Total net assels $ 6,930,838 $ 7,148 487

Changes in net assets. The Township's iotal revenues aré $1,341,819. Approximately 57 percent of
the Township's revenues come from property taxes, while 18 percent comes from charges for services.
State shared revenue represents only 15 percent of the Township’s total revenues.



Township of Saugatuck
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Condensed financial information
Changes in net assets

2011 2010

Program revenues:

Charges for services $ 246,280 § 255729

Operating granis and contributions 7,138 11,391

Capital grants and contributions 87,503 80,240
General revenues:

Property taxes 766,784 716,375

State shared revenue 198,617 150,925

Franchise fees 26,202 26,597

Investment income 9,286 23,073

Total revenues 1,341,819 1,264,330

Expenses:
Legislafive 1,470 1,610
General government 705,291 667,685
Public safety 50,392 49,051
Public works 297,721 282,951
Health and welfare 6,394 5,964
Community and economic development 45,078 47,156
Recreation and cufiure 20,805 21,949
Interest on long-term debt 46,520 50,666
Tofal expenses 1,173,671 1,127,032
Special iterns:
Sale of perpetual easement 147,518
Special assessment refunds (533,315) -
Total special items (385,797) -
Changes in net assets $ (217,649) $ 137,298

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the Township’s net assets by $217,649
in the current year compared to a $137,298 increase in the prior year. Total revenues increased by
$77,489, primarily due to increases in both property taxes ($50,409) and state shared revenue
($47,692). However, refunds of special assessments, in the amount of $533,315, a special item,

caused a decrease in net assets in the current year.

The cost of ali governmental activities this year was $1,173,671. After subfracting the direct charges to
those who direcily benefited from the programs ($246,289) and operating and capital grants ($94,641),
the "public benefit” portion covered by property taxes, state shared revenue, and other general revenues

was $832,741,




Township of Saugatuck
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWNSHIP’S FUNDS

Governmental funds. As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Township's governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $1,485,202, a decrease of $527,419 In comparison with the
prior year. The decrease is primarily due to special assessment refunds, in the amount of $533,315.

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the Township. At the end of the fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance was $213,236, which represents 43 percent of the actual total General Fund
expenditures for the current fiscal year. The fund balance increased by $77,983 during the current
fiscal year, primarily due fo proceeds from the sale of a perpetual easement, in the amount of

$147,518, which is reported as a special item.

The Road Fund experienced a decrease in fund balance of $49,520. Road improvement costs exceeded
property tax revenue in the current year as substantial road improvement expenditures ($539,458) were
incurred in the current year. The fund now holds $443,485 that is restricted for future road projects.

The Water Debt Fund experienced a decrease in fund balance of $2,098 because current year revenues
were less than current year expenditures. Assessments and debt service charges, coliected on behalf of
the Township, are heing used to pay ongoing debt service costs on two pond issues, with payments due

through the year 2017.

The Sewer Debt Fund experienced a decrease in fund batance of $547,369, primarily because of a
special item, in the amount of $533,315, for special assessment refunds. Assessments and debt service
charges, collected on behalf of the Township, are being used o pay ongoing debt service costs on a
single bond issue, with payments due through the year 2022

General Fund budgetary highlights

The difference between the original budget and the final amended budget for expenditures was a net
increase of $44,857 in response to increased costs in the general government function.

Revenues were $69,016 higher than budgeted because property taxes, permits, state shared revenue,
and other revenues were all higher than anticipated. General Fund expenditures were $9,657 lower than
the amounts appropriated because general government expenditures were $17,528 less than expected.

These variances resulted in @ $77,983 positive budget variance, with a $77,983 increase in fund halance
after other financing uses and special items.



Township of Saugatuck
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Capital asset and debt administration

Capital assets
The Township's investment in capital assefs as of June 30, 2011, amounts to $6,152,954 (net of

accumulated depreciation). This investment includes a broad range of assets, including land, buildings,
equipment, sewer and water systems, and shared road costs. The increase in the Township's net
investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was $219,880.

Road improvement costs, considered intangible assets, were the major capital asset event during the
current fiscal year. The Township’s share of road improvement costs was $512,510,

More detailed information about the Township's capital assets is presented in Note 5 of the notes to the
basic financial statements.

Debt
At year end, the Township’s iong-term debt totaled $1,480,000. Quistanding bonds payable totaled

$1,375,000. Three separate bond issues are all secured by special assessments on benefited properties
or utility system revenues. A contract payable, with a balance of $105,000, relates to an agreement

between the City of the Village of Douglas and the Township.

More detailed information about the Township's long-term debt is presented in Note 8 of the notes to the
basic financial statements.

Economic condition and outlook

General Fund
The Township continues fo maintain a fund balance in the General Fund, which is sufficient for

unforeseen or emergency expenditures. The fund balance of the General Fund at June 30, 2011, was
$213,236, which represents 43% of the actual General Fund expenditures for the current fiscal year.

The Township’s economic outiook mirrors the State of Michigan and the economy as a whole in
projecting revenues and expenditures. Because the economy is flat and construction activity is minimal, it
is recognized that many desirable projects, which would enhance the quality of life, such as park or other
recreational improvements, are not feasible because of limited funds after mandatory and standard

operational needs are met.

Cemetery Fund
The fund balance of the Cemetery Fund is sufficient to fund operations for at least two years without

additional revenue which will accrue through cemetery millage and the sale of burial rights.

The Township has been negotiating with the City of Saugatuck and the City of the Village of Douglas in
order fo obtain fair and equitable funding for cemetery maintenance for deceased city burials,
Negotiations have not been conclusive.

-10-




Township of Saugatuck
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Road Fund
New construction and heavy maintenance projects are dependent on exira voted millages. The Township

voters have continually renewed these millages, which have aliowed the Township Board to resurface
and reconstruct 27 miles of roadway over the years. The Township was fortunate to have made extensive
road improvements during the years when construction costs were moderate.

Projects are undertaken on a pay as you go basis. Recent major increases in fuel and asphatt prices
indicate that fewer and iess extensive projects will be possible if current ol prices prevail.

The current road capital improvement plan provides for resurfacing of 19.47 miles of Township roads
through 2017. All resurface projects will include 2-inch asphalt overlays, with additional 3-foot paved
shoulders for surface edge projection and non-motorized users.

Debt retirement funds
During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011, the Township partially refunded to property owners in the

sewer special assessment district a total amount of $533,315. The charge 1o connect to the
gewer/Collection system remains $7,069.57 per residential equivalency. Remaining bonds, in the
principal amount of $825,000, are still to be paid through 2022. The Sewer Debt Fund has equity of
$377,621, after the partial refunds, with taxing authority and connection charges still in effect and

ongoing.

The Water Debt Fund is committed to the retirement of bonds, in @ total amount of $550,000, through
2017. The Water Debt Fund has equity of $303,343, with all funding mechanisms intact.

Contacting the Township’s financial management

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Township's finances to its citizens,
customers, investors and creditors and to demonstrate the Township’s accountability for the resources it
receives. Questions regarding any information provided in this report or requests for additional financial

information should be addressed to:

Township of Saugatuck Phone: (269) 857-7721
Phil Quade, Township Manager

3461 Blue Star Highway

Saugatuck, Mi 49453

A1-
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Township of Saugatuck
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2011

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash
Investments
Receivables

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Receivables
Capital assets not being depreciated - land
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current fiabilities:
Payables
Contract
Bonds payable

Total current liabillties

Noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred revenue
Contract
Bonds payable

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
General government
Public works
Mealth and welfare
Debt service
Unrestricted

Total net assets

See notes to financial stalements
-12-

Governmental
aclivities

$ 1,282,261

282,244
237,720

1,802,225

670,082
215,057
5,937,897

6,823,036

8,625,261

177,240
15,000
160,000

352,240

37,183
90,000
1,215,000

1,342,183

1,604,423

4,777,954

143,714
443,485
3,803
1,453,646
108,236

3 6,930,838




Township of Saugatuck
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year ended June 30, 2011

Functions/Programs
covernmental activities:
Legislative
General government
Public safety
Pubtic works
Health and welfare
Community and sconomic
development
Recreation and culture
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental
activities

Operating Capital
Charges for grants and grants and
Expenses services confributions contributions

$ 1,470 - - $ -
705,291 152,216 2,807 -
50,392 33,264 - -

297,721 8,216 4,028 87,503
6,394 - - -
45,078 4,328 - -
20,805 - 303 -
46,620 48,265 - -

$ 1,173,671 § 246,289 $ 7,438 § 87,603

Program reventies

General revenues.
Property taxes
State shared revenue
Franchise fees
investment income
Special items!

Sale of perpetual easement

Special assessment refunds

Change in net assels

Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

See notes fo financial statements

13-

Total general revenues and special items

Net (expenses)
revenues
and change
in net assels

Governmental
activities

(1,470)
(550,268)
(17,128)
(197.974)
(6,394)

{40,760}

(20,502)
1,745

(832,741)

766,784
498,617
26,202
6,286

147,518
(533,315)

615,092
(247,649)
__ 7.448487

$ 6,930,838



Township of Saugatuck
BALANCE SHEET - governmental funds

June 30, 2011 | :

Water Sewer [
General Road Debt Debt '
ASSETS [
Cash $ 82940 430,371 $ 279466 $ 377,821 ! :
Investments 103,554 110,462 - -
Receivables 100,843 - 180,801 601,158 -
Total asssts $ 287337 $ 540,833 $ 460,267 $ 978,779 f ;
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Payables $ 36918 $ 97,348 § - $ -
Deferred revenue 37,183 - 166,924 601,158
Total liabilities 74,101 97,348 156,924 501,158

Fund balances:
Restricted for:
General government - -
Public works - 443,485 - -

Health and welfare - - - -

Debt service - - 303,343 377,621
Unassigned 213,236 - - -

Total fund balances 213,236 443,485 303,343 377,621

Total liabilities and fund balances $ 287,337 $ 540,833 $ 460,267 $ 978,779

Total fund batance - totaj governmental funds
Amounts reported for governinental activities in the statement of net assets (page 12} are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental aclivities are not financial resources and, therefore, are
not reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures
and, therefore, are deferred in the funds,

Interest payable is not due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
is not reported in the funds,

Long-term liabilities, including bonds and contracts payable, are not due and payable in the [
current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. [ ,

Net assets of governmentaj activities



Tofal

Nonmajor governmental
funds funds

3 111,863 § 1,282,261
68,228 282,244

- 882,802

3 180,091 % 2,447,307
$ 32574 § 166,840
- 795,265

32,574 962,105

143,714 143,714

- 443,485

3,803 3,803

- 680,964

- 213,236

147,617 1,485,202

$ 180,001 § 2,447,307
$ 1,485,202

6,152,954

768,082
(10,400)
{1,480,000)

§ 6905838

See notes fo financial statements
-14-



Township of Saugatuck

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCES - governmental funds
Year ended June 30, 2011

REVENUES

Property taxes

Licenses and permits

State granis

Coniributions from local units
Charges for services

Interest and rentals

Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Legislative
General government
Public safely
Public works
Health and welfare
Community and economic development
Recreation and culture :
Capital outiay
Debt service:
Principal
Interest

Total expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer in
Transfer out
Net other financing sources (uses)
SPECIAL ITEMS
Proceeds from sale of perpetual easement
Refund of speciat assessments
Total special items
NET CHANGES iN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING

FUND BALANCES - ENDING

Water Sewer
General Road Debt Debt
$195,192 $489,506 § - $ -
60,825 - - -
202,645 - - -
30,260 - 64,191 23,312
137 432 14,096 47,713
22,367 - 31,127 64,887
511,426 488,938 109,414 135,912
1,470 - - -
382,885 - 24,960 30,584
50,392 - - .
19,527 539,458 - 7,814
33,709 - - -
4,946 - - -
7,071 -
- - 80,000 70,000
- - 6,552 41,568
500,000 539,458 111,512 149,966
11,426 {(45,520) {2,098) {14,054)
{80,961) - - -
{80,961} - -
147,518 - - -
- - - (533,315)
147,518 - - {533,315)
77,983 (49,520) (2,098) (547,369}
135,253 493,005 305,441 924,990
$213,236 $443485 § 303343 § 377,621




Total

Nonmajor governmental
funds funds
3 168,332 $ 853,037
- 60,825
- 202,645
19,894 19,894
8,120 125,883
173 62,551
- 118,381
196,526 1,443,218
- 1,470
266,139 704,568
- 50,392
- 566,799
6,394 6,394
11,369 45,078
- 4,946
- 7,071
- 160,000
- 48,120
283,902 1,684,838
(87,376) (141,622)
80,961 80,961
- (80:9_61_)
80,961 -
- 147,518
- {533,315)
- {385,797)
{6,415) (527,419)
153,932 2,012,621
$ 147517 % 1,485,202

Soee noles fo financlal statements
15-



Township of Saugatuck
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND

BALANCES - governmental funds (Continued)
Year ended June 30, 2011

Reconciliation of the statement of revenues, expendifures, and
changes in fund balances to the statement of activities:

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds {page 15)

Amounts reporled for governmental activities in the statement of activities
(page 13) are different because;

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expendiiures. However, in the
statement of activities, the costs of those assets are allocated over their
useful lives as depreciation expense.

Add - asset acquisitions

Deduct - depreciation provision

Because some special assessments will not be collected untif subsequent
periods, they are not considered available revenues and are deferred

in the governmental funds. Deferred special assessment revenues
decreased by this amount this year.

Repayment of principal on long-term debt is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term
liabilities in the statement of net assets.

Changes in other assets/liabilities:

Decrease in accrued interest expense
Decrease in judgment payable

Change in net assets - governmental activities

See nofes fo financial statements
-18-

$  (527,419)

512,501
(292,621)

(96,397)

165,000

1,600
24,687

§ {212,649)




Township of Saugatuck
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The accounting policies of the Township of Saugatuck, Michigan (the Township), conform to U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (hereinafter referred to as generally accepied accounting
principles) as applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the more significant

accounting policies.

Reporting entity.

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, these financial statements present the
Township. The criteria established by the GASB for determining the reporting entity includes oversight
responsibility, fiscal dependency, and whether the financial statements would be misleading if data were
not included. The Township has determined that no outside agency meets the above criteria and,
therefore, no outside agency has been included as a blended or discretely presented component unit in

the Township’s financial statements.

Government-wide and fund financial statements:
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of

activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Township. The effect of interfund
activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, normally supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which
rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function. Program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function; and (2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function.
Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general

revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds, Major individual
governmental funds are reported in separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation:

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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Township of Saugatuck
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation (continued):

Governmental funds financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available, Revenues are considered to be avallable if they are collected within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to pay iiabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Township
generally considers property tax revenues {0 be available if they are expected to be collected within 60
days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, expenditures refating to
compensated absences, and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due.

State grants, licenses and permits, charges for services, and interest associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal
period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period. All other revenue
items are considered to be measurable only when cash is received by the Township.

The Township reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the Township’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources
of the Township, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Road Fund accounts for financial resources used for the construction and maintenance of
roads. Revenues are primarily derived from property taxes.

The Water Debt Fund accounts for issuance and payment of debt related to water improvements.
The Sewer Debt Fund accounts for issuance and payment of debt related to sewer improvements.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior 1o December 1, 1989, are
generally followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent
that those standards do not conflict with the standards of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB). Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their
enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The Township has elected not to follow subsequent

private-sector standards.

Amounts reported as program revenues include: (1) charges to customers of applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided; (2) operating grants and contributions; and (3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.
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Township of Saugatuck
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(Continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity:
Bank deposits and investments - Cash is considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and

short-term investments with a maturity of three months or less when acquired. Investments are
reported at fair value. Pooled investment income is proportionately allocated to all funds.

Receivables - No allowance for uncoliectible accounts has been recorded as the Township
considers all receivables to be fully collectible.

Prepaid items - Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future fiscal years and are
recorded as prepaid items in the government-wide financial statements.

Capital assets - Capital assets, which includes property, equipment, and infrastruciure assets
(e.g., shared road costs and similar items), are reported in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the Township as assets with an initial individuat cost of
more than $2,000 ($10,000 for infrastructure assets) and an estimated useful life in excess of two
years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation. Governments can elect to account for infrastructure assets either retroactively to June
15, 1980, or prospectively. The Township has elected to account for infrastructure assets
prospectively, beginning July 1, 2003. The Township includes shared road costs in its
infrastructure assets. These costs represent the Township’s portion of public road improvements
for roads within the Township, which are owned by the County of Allegan.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-ine method over the following useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 10 - 50 years
Equipment 3 - 20 years
Sewer and water systems 50 years
Shared road cosits 20 years

Deferred revenue - In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report deferred
revenue in connection with resources that are not considered {o pe available to liquidate
liabilittes of the current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in
connection with resources that have been received but not yet earned.

Fund equily - Governmental funds report restricted fund balances as externally imposed
constraints are placed on the use of resources by grantors, contributors, or laws and reguiations
of other governments. Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General

Fund.

When the Township incurs an expenditure for purposes for which various fund halance
classifications can be used, it is the Township's policy to use the restricted funds balance first,

then unassigned fund balance.
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Township of Saugatuck
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued):

Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity (continued):;
Properly tax revenue recognition - Property taxes are levied as of December 1 on property

values assessed as of December 31 of the prior year. The billings are due on or before
February 14, at which time the bill becomes delinquent and penalties and interest may be
assessed by the Township. Property tax revenue is recognized in the year for which taxes have
been levied and become available, The Township levy date is December 1, and, accordingly,
the total levy is recognized as revenue in the current year.

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY:

Budgetary information - Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles for governmental funds. The budget document presents information by fund,
function, department, and line-item. The legal level of budgetary control adopted by the governing body

is the function level,

Excess of expenditures over appropriations - The following schedule sets forth budget variances for
the current fiscal year:

Final
Fund Function budget Actual Variance
General General government $ 365357 $ 382,885 $ {17,528)
Nonmajor Generai government 184,000 191,965 (7,965)

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS:

At June 30, 2011, cash and investments were classified in the accompanying financial statements as
follows:

Statement of net assels:

Cash $ 1,282,261
Investments 282,244
Total cash and investments $ 1,564,508

At June 30, 2011, cash and investments consist of the following:

Deposits with financial institutions § 1,282,161
Investments 282,244
Cash on hand 100

Total cash and investments $ 1,564,505

-20-




Township of Saugatuck
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued):

Deposits:
Michigan Compiled Laws, Section 129.91 (Public Act 20 of 1943, as amended) and the Township’s

investment policy authorize the Township to make deposits in the accounts of federally-insured banks,
credit unions, and savings and foan associations that have an office in Michigan. The Township’s deposits

are in accordance with statutory authority.

Custodial credit risk of deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a financial institution, the
Township will not be able to recover its deposits. Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are
not covered by depository insurance or are uncollateralized. The Township's investment policy does not
specifically address custodial credit risk for deposits. At June 30, 2011, $74,230 of the Township’s bank
balances of $1,289,760 was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and

uncollateralized.

Investments:
State statutes and the Township's investment policy authorize the Township to invest in a) obligations of

the U.S. Treasury, agencies, and instrumentalities; b) commercial paper, with three (3) highest rate
classifications by at least two (2) rating services, maturing not later than 270 days; c) repurchase
agreements, collateralized by U.S. governmental securities; d) bankers’ acceptances; and e) qualified
investment pools. The Township’s investments are held in the Cooperative Liquid Assets Securities
System - Michigan (CLASS), a local investment pool established under Michigan state statutes for
participating Michigan municipalities. The pool's investments are reported at fair value. The fund is

rated AAAM by Standard and Poors.

NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES:

Receivables as of June 30, 2011, for the Township’s major funds and nonmajor funds, in the
aggregate, were as follows:

Special intergovern-
Fund Accounts assessments interest mental Totals
General $ 6665 § - $ - 3 04178 $ 100,843
Water Debt 23,877 156,924 - - 180,801
Sewer Debt - 601,158 - - 601,158
Totals $ 30542 % 758,082 $ - $ 94,178 $ 882,802
Noncurrent portion $ - $ 670,082 $ - 8 - $ 670,082




Township of Saugatuck

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS:

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2011, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
balance Increases  Decreases balance
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated - land ~ § 215,057 § - 3 - $ 215,057
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements 628,077 - - 628,077
Buildings 192,832 - - 192,832
Equipment 81,932 - - 81,932
Sewer and water system 3,627,899 - - 3,627,899
Shared road costs 2,607,057 512,501 - 3,119,558
Subtotal 7,137,797 512,501 - 7,650,298
Less accumulated depreciation for: _
Land improvements (180,095) {(21,084) - (201,179)
Buildings {(69,499) (4,389) - (73,888)
Equipment (51,520) (7,993) - (69,513)
Sewer and water system (527,148} (61,312} - {588,460)
Shared road costs (591,518) _ (197,843) - (789,361)
Subtotal (1,419,780) _ (292,621) - (1,712,401)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 5,718,017 219,880 - 5,937,897
Governmental activilies capital assets, net $ 5933074 $ 219,880 $ - $ 6,152,954

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the Township as follows:

Governmental aclivities:
General government $
Public works
Recreation and culture

Total governmental activities $

17,606

259,156
15,859

282,621




Township of Saugatuck
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 6 - PAYABLES:

Payables as of June 30, 2011, for the Township’s major funds and nonmajor funds, in the aggregate,

were as foliows:

Fund Accounts Payroll Totals
General $ 19,981 § 16,927 $ 36,918
Road 97,348 - 97,348
Nonmajor govemmental 32,574 - 32,674

Totals $ 149,913 § 16,927 $ 166,840

NOTE 7 - DEFERRED REVENUE:

As of June 30, 2011, the various components of deferred revenue were as follows:

Unearned Unavailable Totals
Tower lease : $ 37183 $ . § 37183
Water debt special assessmenis - 166,924 156,924
Sewer debt special assessments - 601,158 601,168
Total deferred revenue $ 37,183 $ 758,082 $ 795,265

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT.

At June 30, 2011, long-term debt was comprised of the following individual issues:

Governmental activities:
Bonds payable:
$755,000 1998 Specia assessment limited tax ponds - payable in annual
installments ranging from $35,000 to $50,000, plus interest at 5.10%; final
payment due Aprit 2017, secured by assessments and full faith and credit

of the Township

$520,000 1998 Water supply system revenue bonds - payable in annual
installments ranging from $25,000 to $50,000, plus interest at 5.10%,; final
payment due April 2017, secured by assessments

$1,385,000 2002 Special assessment limited tax bonds - payable in annual
installments ranging from $70,000 to $75,000, plus interest at 5.50%; final
payment due April 2022, secured by assessments and full faith and credit

of the Township

Contract payable:
Settlement agreement with another municipality relating to the division of

assets and liabilities pursuant to Michigan Compiled Law 117.14, payable
in annual installments of $15,000 through 2018

Total long-term debt
.23,

$ 300,000
250,000
825,000
105,000

$ 1,480,000



Township of Saugatuck
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):

Long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2011, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Amounts due
balance Additions  Reductions: balance within one year
Governmental activities:
Bonds payable:

1998 Limited tax bonds  § 350,000 § - $ (50,000) $ 300,000 $ 50,000
1998 Revenue bonds 280,000 - (30,000) 250,000 35,000
2002 Limited tax bonds 895,000 - {70,000) 825,000 75,000
1,625,000 - {(150,000) 1,375,000 160,000

Contract payable - 2007
Contract payable 120,000 - (15,000) 105,000 15,000
Totals $ 1,645,000 $ - $ (165,000) $ 1,480,000 § 175,000

At June 30, 2011, debt service requirements were as follows:

Year ended Governmental activities

June 30: Principal Interest
2012 $§ 175000 $ 41,632
2013 175,000 37,088
2014 180,000 34,264
2015 180,000 30,404
2016 180,000 26,506
2017 - 2021 515,000 74,490
2022 75,000 3,750
Totals $ 1,480,000 $ 249,034

NOTE 9 - JOINTLY-GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS:

Saugatuck Township Fire District:
The Township, in conjunction with the City of Saugatuck and the City of the Village of Douglas, created

the Saugatuck Township Fire District. The District's administrative board consists of five members, two at-
large members and one member from each of the three participating units. The budget of the District is
approved at a joint meeting of the participating units. The Township of Saugatuck did not provide support
to the District in fiscal year 2011. The Township does not retain an ongoing financial interest or

responsibility in the District,

Interurban Transit Authority:
The Township, in conjunction with the City of Saugatuck and the City of the Village of Douglas, created

the Interurban Transit Authority. The Authority's administrative board consists of six members, two
members appointed by each of the three participating units. The Township of Saugatuck did not provide
support to the Authority in fiscal year 2011. The Township does not retain an ongoing financial interest or

responsibility in the Authority.
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Township of Saugatuck
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 10 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM:

Plan description and provisions:
All of the Township’s full-time employees patrticipate in the Michigan Municipal Employees’ Retirement

System (the System), a multi-employer public retirement system.

Al full-time employees of the Township are eligible to participate in the System. There are currently two
retired beneficiaries receiving benefits from the System in the form of monthly payments. There is one
terminated employee who is entitled to benefits but is not yet receiving benefits. In addition, there are
currently three active participants, some of whom are fully vested. Employees who retire at or after age
sixty with ten years of credited service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life equal to
2.25% of final average compensation, with a maximum benefit of 80% of final average compensation.
Final average compensation is the employee's average salary over the last five years of credited service.
Benefits fully vest upon reaching ten years of service. Vested employees may retire at or after age fifty
with specified years of credited service and receive reduced retirement benefits. The System also
provides death and total disability benefits and certain post-retirement adjustments to the amount of

retirement benefiis.

The Township is required by state statute to contribute actuarially determined amounts necessary o pay
benefits when due. The System issues a publicly-available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to Municipal
Employees’ Retirement System of Michigan, 447 N. Canal, Lansing, Michigan 48917, or by calling

1-800-767-6377.

Funding policy:

Contribution rates for each participating employer and its covered employees are established, and may
be amended, by each participating unit. The contribution rates are determined based on the henefit
structure established by each employer. Covered employees are not required to contribute to the System.
Participating employers are required to contribute amounts necessary to finance the coverage of their
employees through pericdic contributions at actuarially-determined rates. Administrative costs of the

System are financed through investment earnings.

Annual pension cost:
For the year ended June 30, 2011, the Township’s annual pension cost was $41,429 for its defined

benefit pension plan. The required contribution was determined as part of the December 31, 2008,
actuarial valuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included a) an
8% investment rate of return, net of administrative expenses, b) projected salary increases of 4.5% per
year, and c) an added percentage hased on an age-related scale to reflect merit, longevity, and
promotional salary increases. The actuarial value of the System's assets was determined using
techniques that smooth the effects of shori-term volatility in the market value of investments over a five-
year period. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized over a closed period of 28 years

as a level percentage of payroll.
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Township of Saugatuck
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 10 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM (Continued):

Three-year trend information is as follows:

Year Annual Percentage Net
ended pension of APC pension
June 30: cost (APC) conlributed obligation

2009 $ 40,144 100% $ -
2010 44,847 100% -
2011 41,429 100% -

Funded status and funding progress:
The funded status of the plan as of December 31, 2010, the most recent actuarial date, was as follows:

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial accrued percentage
value of fiability (AAL) Unfunded Funded Covered of covered
assels enlry age AAL (UAAL) ratio payroll payroll
(a) (b} (b-a) (atb) (c) ((b-a)/c)
$ 310,865 $ 739,306 $ 428,441 42% $ 195,256 219%

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes
to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial values of
plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Certain other accounting policies and plan asset matters are discussed in greater detail in the Township’s
actuarial valuation.

NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Township is exposed to various risks of ioss related to property loss, torts, errors and omissions,
and employee injuries (workers' compensation). The Township has purchased commercial insurance
for each of these claims and is neither seif-insured, nor participates in a shared-risk pool. Settled
claims relating to commercial insurance have not exceeded the amount of insurance coverage in any

of the past three fiscal years.
NOTE 12 - CONSTRUCTION CODE ACT:

A summary of construction code enforcement transactions for the year ended June 30, 2011, is as
follows:

Revenues $ 30,864
Expenses (95,118)
Deficiency of revenues over expenses $  (64,254)
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Township of Saugatuck
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTE 13 - INTERFUND TRANSFER:

The General Fund transferred $80,961 to a nonmajor governmental fund to help pay for legal and
planning expenditures accounted for in the nonmajor governmental fund.

NOTE 14 - SPECIAL ITEMS:

During the year ended June 30, 2011, the Township granted a perpetual access and utiiity easement to
specific property to cellular phone provider in exchange for $147,518. The Township also approved a
partial vacation of sewer special assessments resulting in a refund of previously paid assessments to the

property owners in the amount of $533,315.

The perpetual easement sale and refund of special assessments are presented in the accompanying
financial statements as special items because they are significant transactions, within the control of the
Township’s management, and are unusual in nature. The transactions are considered unusual as they

are not typical or ordinary activities of the Township.
NOTE 15 - ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING POLICY:

Effective July 1, 2010, the Township adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. This
Statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the
extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources
reported in governmental funds. The adoption of this standard had no effect on the total fund balance.
The beginning fund, balance of the Water Debt Fund was increased by $32,897, which was comprised
of equity previously reported in the Water Project Fund, and the Sewer Debt Fund was increased by
$8,440, which was comprised of equity previously reported in the Sewer Project Fund.

NOTE 16 - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT:

A prior period adjustment has been recorded in 2011 to correct the balance of accrued interest
receivable of the governmental activities at the end of the prior year. Equity as of July 1, 2010, included
in the accompanying financial statements, represents a restated balance as presented below. The
following schedule identifies the nature and amount of the adjustrent recorded.

_Netassefs

Governmental
activities

Beginning of year, as previously reported $ 7,118,487
Prior period adjustment:
Understatement of interest receivable 30,000

Beginning of year, as restated $ 7,148,487
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Township of Saugattick
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - General Fund

Year ended June 30, 2011

Variance with

final budget
Original Final positive
budget budget Actual (negative)
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 195400 $ 185290 $ 195,192 $ 9,902
Licenses and permits 58,900 50,900 60,825 9,925
State grants 146,000 165,310 202,645 37,335
Charges for services 25,000 30,710 30,260 (450)
Interest and rentals 1,000 - 137 137
Other 10,600 10,200 22,367 12,167
Total revenues 436,900 442,410 511,426 69,016

EXPENDITURES
Legislative 1,000 1,200 1,470 (270)
General government 332,232 365,357 382,885 (17,528)
Public safety 45,792 49,900 50,392 (492)
Public works 22,100 23,100 10,527 3,573
Community and economic

development 33,676 40,000 33,709 6,291
Recreation and cuiture 8,100 8,100 4,946 3,154
Capital outlay 22,000 22,000 7,071 14,929

Total expenditures 464,800 508,657 500,000 9,657

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES (27,900) (67,247) 11,426 78,673
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfer out - Legal and Planning Fund - (80,753) (80,961) (208)
SPECIAL ITEM
Proceeds from saie of

perpetual easement - 148,000 147,518 (482)
NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (27,900} - 77,983 77,983
FUND BALANGCES - BEGINNING 135,253 135,253 135,253 -

FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ 107,353 % 135253 $ 213,236 $ 77,983
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Township of Saugatuck
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - Road Fund

Year ended June 30, 2011

Variance with

final budget
Original Final positive
budget budget Actual (negalive)
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 520,000 $ 520,000 $ 489,506 $ (30,494)
Interest 1,000 1,000 432 (568)
Total revenues 521,000 521,000 489,938 (31,062)
EXPENDITURES
Public works 642,000 642,000 539,458 102,542
NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (121,000) (121,000) (49,520) 71,480

FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 493,005 493,005 493,005 -

FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ 372005 $ 372,005 $ 443485 § 71,480
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Township of Saugaftuck
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - Employee Retirement System

(Municipal Employees’ Retirement System of Michigan)

Actuarial

Actuarial Actuarial accrued

valuation value of liability (AAL) Unfunded Funded Covered
date assels entry age AAL (UAAL) ratio payrofl

December 31, (a) (b} (b-a) (a/b) (c}

2008 $ 308,823 $ 707,972 § 399,149 44% $ 1871 08
2009 307,604 718,386 410,782 43% 189,563
2010 310,865 739,306 428,441 42% 195,256

Note to schedule:

The 2010 valuation reflects the following changes in the actuarial assumptions:
« Temporary lower wage inflation assumption of 1.00% for the years 2011 throug

4.50%
« Final average compensation assumption increase is now 0.00%.

UAAL as a

percentage

of covered
payroll

{(h-a)/c}

213%
217%
219%

h 2014, instead of
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Township of Saugatuck

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - nonmajor gove

June 30, 2011

rnmental funds

Special revenue funds

Legal and
Cemetery Ambulance Planning Totals
ASSETS
Cash $ 77330 §$ 3,848 § 30,685 $ 111,863
Investments 68,228 - - 68,228
Total assets § 145568 § 3848 § 30685 $ 180,001
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Payables $ 1844 § 45 $ 30,685 $ 32,574
Fund balances:
Restricted:
General government 143,714 - - 143,714
Health and welfare - 3,803 - 3,803
Total fund balances 143,714 3,803 - 147,517
Total liabilities and
fund balances $ 145558 $ 3,848 § 30,685 $ 180,091
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Township of Saugatuck

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - nonmajor governmental funds
Year ended June 30, 2011

Special revenue funds
Legal and

Cemetery Ambulance  Planning Totals
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 36,701 $ 9,269 $ 122,369 $ 168,339
Contributions from local units 19,894 - - 19,894
Charges for services 8,120 - - 8,120
Interest 169 - 4 173
Total revenues 64,884 9,269 122,373 196,526

EXPENDITURES
General government 74174 - 191,965 266,139
Health and welfare - 6,394 - 6,394
Community and economic

development - - 11,369 11,369

Total expenditures 74,174 6,394 203,334 283,902

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

OVER EXPENDITURES (9,290) 2,875 (80,961) (87,376)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfer in - General Fund - - 80,961 80,961
NET CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (9,290) 2,875 - (6,415)
FUND BALANCES - BEGINNING 153,004 928 - 153,932
FUND BALANCES - ENDING $ 143,714 $ 3803 $ - $ 147 517




Township of Saugatuck

SCHEDULE OF BOND RETIR

EMENT AND ANNUAL INTEREST REQUIREMENTS -

$755,000 1998 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT LIMITED TAX BONDS
June 30, 2011
Fiscal interest requirements Maturity Total
period October 1 April 1 date Principal requirements
2012 % 810 $ 810 4/01/12 $ 50,000 $ 51,620
2013 675 675 4/01/13 50,000 51,350
2014 540 540 4/01/114 50,000 51,080
2015 405 405 4/01/15 50,000 50,810
2016 270 270 4/01/16 50,000 50,540
2017 135 135 4f01/17 50,000 50,270
$ 2,835 3 2,835 $ 300,000 $ 305,670
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Township of Saugatuck
SCHEDULE OF BOND RETIREMENT AND ANNUAL INTEREST REQUIREMENTS -

$520,000 1998 WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS

June 30, 2011

Fiscal Interest requirements Maturity Total
period October 1 April 1 date Principal requirements
2012 $ 675  § 675 4/01/12 $ 35,000 § 36,350
2013 581 581 4/01M13 35,000 36,162
2014 486 486 4/01/14 40,000 40,972
2015 378 378 4/01/16 40,000 40,756
2016 270 270 4/01/16 50,000 50,540
2017 135 135 4/01/17 50,000 50,270
$ 2,525 § 2,525 $ 250,000 % 255,050
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Township of Saugatuck

SCHEDULE OF BOND RETI
$1,385,000 2002 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT LIMITED TAX

June 30, 2011

REMENT AND ANNUAL INTEREST REQUIREMENTS -

BONDS

Fiscal interest requirements Maturity Total
period October 1 April 1 date Principal requirements
2012 $ 19,331 $ 19,331 40112 $ 75,000 $ 113,662
2013 17,738 17,738 4/01/13 75,000 110,476
2014 16,106 16,106 4/01/14 75,000 107,212
2015 14,419 14,419 4/0115 75,000 103,838
2016 12,713 12,713 4/01/16 75,000 100,426
2017 10,969 10,969 4/01/17 75,000 06,938
2018 9,206 9,206 4/01/18 75,000 83,412
2019 7,425 7,425 4/01/19 75,000 89,850
2020 5,625 5,625 4/01/20 75,000 86,250
2021 3,750 3,750 4/01/21 75,000 82,500
2022 1,875 1,875 4/01/22 75,000 78,750
$ 119,167 $ 119,157 $ 825,000 $ 1,063,314






